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Worker dormitory
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WKK Technology Limited is the pioneer in green manufacturing. Since 2002, over 1,600 solar panels were installed on the roof

of worker dormitory in WKK Technology Park at Dongguan China for 24 hours hot water supplies to our 5,000 employees.
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These OEM products are manufactured by WKK Technology Limited
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These products are manufactured or distributed by the subsidiaries of
WKK Distribution Limited
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Solder Bar
F213

Licensed soldering material from Nihon Superior
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group achieved a record turnover of HK$5.2 billion for the year 2010,
representing an increase of approximately 68% compared to last year.
The Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of HK$135.1
million for this year as compared to a loss attributable to shareholders
of HK$41.2 million last year.

Trading and Distribution Division (WKK Distribution)

The Group’s Industrial Products Trading Division achieved record
sales of HK$2.4 billion for the year 2010 reflecting an increase of
approximately 113% compared to last year, mainly because the Group’s
outstanding sales force and customer services teams were well prepared
to capitalise on the improvement in the global economy. Its operating
profit was HK$149.2 million for the whole year as compared to an
operating loss of HK$25.1 million last year. The Division’s operations
in Taiwan continued to perform well in the second half of this year and
were the main contributor to the Division’s profit for the whole year.
The trading of electronic products in China recorded significant growth
of approximately 115% in turnover and operating profits before tax of
HKS$43 million as compared to an operating loss of HK$9.8 million
last year. All of the Division’s other major operations in Hong Kong
and Thailand achieved operating profits for the year 2010. However, its
operations in Singapore recorded an operating loss mainly due to a fall

in demand in that market.

Manufacturing (WKK Technology)

The turnover of the Group’s OEM Manufacturing Division was HK$2.7
billion for the year 2010, up by approximately 42% compared to last
year largely due to the continued improvement in the global economy,
and as a result, more orders were secured in the second half of this year
as compared to those in the first half of this year. It’s operating profit
was HK$45 million, reflecting an increase of approximately 412% as

compared to last year.

FINANCE

The Group has committed bank and other financing facilities totalling
HK$2,710 million, of which HK$1,348 million was drawn down as at
31 December 2010. As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s consolidated
net borrowings amounted to HK$216 million and total equity amounted

to HK$1,396 million, resulting in a net gearing ratio of 15.5%.

Most of the Group’s sales were conducted in the same currencies as the
corresponding purchase transactions. Foreign exchange contracts were

used to hedge exposures where necessary.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
There have been no material changes in the capital structure of the Group
since 31 December 2009.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a total of 5,943 employees, of
whom 322 were based in Hong Kong, 5,294 in the PRC and 327 overseas.
The remuneration packages of the Group’s employees are mainly based
on their performance and experience, taking into account current industry
practices. Provident fund scheme, medical allowances, and in-house and
external training programs are available to employees. Share options
and discretionary bonuses are provided to employees according to the
performance of the individual and the Group. The remuneration policy

and packages of the Group’s employees are regularly reviewed.

PROSPECTS

In addition to the ongoing turmoil in the Middle East and North Africa,
the recent earthquake, tsunami and the nuclear power-plant damage
in Japan will affect the business of the Group although to what extent
is uncertain. Although it is premature to assess the long term impact,
it is expected that the Group’s Trading and Distribution Division will
encounter a tougher market environment this year. The Group endeavours
to take measures in order to mitigate the impacts, but the directors expect
that the performance of the Group’s OEM manufacturing Division will

be affected partly by the rising wages for workers in the PRC.

On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank all employees for their loyalty,
support and hard work throughout the year.

By Order of the Board

Senta Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY HEFEMEHRE
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TFEMBEHRE

For the year ended 31 December
BRETH=Z1—HIAEE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T i T T T T
RESULTS %44
Turnover & 2E%5 5,011,863 4,538,540 4,442 440 3,095,362 5,192,120
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders
JEEHEIL R (RsiE) 250,093 108,523 55,899 (41,245) 135,102
At 31 December
R+ H=1+—H%&%
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
i cam HHET o0 T o0 il i T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES % & } £ fi%
Total assets & 5 A4%H 2,428,907 2,623,160 2,621,921 2,332,508 3,646,578
Total liabilities & i 4448 (1,295,489) (1,379,578) (1,346,322) (1,100,012) (2,250,774)
Non-controlling interest 1 il PE#E £ (73,174) (67,309) (76,664) (68,238) (91,946)
Total shareholders’ funds attributable to
the equity holders of the Company
AN B RERA N 2 B 4 400 1,060,244 1,176,273 1,198,935 1,164,258 1,303,858




BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wong, Senta, aged 68, began his career in the electronics industry
in 1964. Mr. Wong is a founder of the Group in 1975 and it has been
de-merged from Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited (the “WIH
Group”) in 1989. Mr. Wong is responsible for the Group’s overall
management and formulation of its corporate strategies. He has been a
director and chairman and chief executive officer of the Company since
March 1990. Mr. Wong is the father of Mr. Wong, Vinci and the father-
in-law of Mr. Chang Jui Shum, Victor.

Tsui Ying-Chun, Edward, aged 64, obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of Hong Kong and joined the WIH Group in 1982 as
general manager in charge of corporate administration. In 1985, Mr. Tsui
became the general manager and, in 1987, a director of the Group. Mr.
Tsui had extensive experience in broadcasting, trading and manufacturing
before joining the WIH Group. He has been a director of the Company
since March 1990.

Ho Shu-Chan, Byron, aged 66, graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Commerce degree. Mr. Ho had more
than 18 years of extensive working experience with the Inchcape group
of companies as financial controller and general manager prior to joining
the WIH Group in January 1989. He has been a director of the Company
since March 1990.

Kwong Man-Hang, Bengie, J.P. (Aust.), aged 63, is an Executive
Program Graduate of the Graduate School of Business from the Stanford
University and an MBA holder. He was formerly the chief executive
of Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (Hong Kong Government
subvented organization) — an independent third party ISO 9000/14000
Quality and Environmental Management System Certification Body.
He has more than 30 years’ senior management experience and has an
impressive track record in the field of computer and electronics industry
with multi-national organizations. Mr. Kwong has fellowships in various
professional institutions, and has been appointed as vice president of the
Institution of British Engineers — England, and fellow of the Institute of
Directors (Royal Charter) U.K. He has been a director of the Company
since February 1996, a director of WKK Japan Limited since February
1997 and a chief executive officer of WKK America (Holdings) Inc.

since June 2001.
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Hamed Hassan El-Abd, aged 63, joined the Group in 1992. He is
a director and the president of WKK Distribution Limited. Prior to
joining the Group, he was president of Amistar AG, a manufacturer of
automated robotics used in electronics assembly in particular the area
of Surface Mount Technology. In 1988 he founded his own consulting
company and worked with Japanese, U.S. and European companies in
the electronics area. Mr. ElI-Abd holds a BA degree in Journalism and
an MA in International Affairs. He has been a director of the Company
since May 2001.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Hsu Hung Chieh, alias, Andrew Sheu, aged 64, is the Vice-Chairman
and CEO of Taiwan Kong King Co., Limited (“TKK”) since 1981, a
company listed in Taiwan. He has over 32 years of experience in the
high technology equipment trading and manufacturing industry and he
served in TKK as management, specialized in operating and marketing,
for over 25 years. He holds a bachelor degree in Electrical Engineering
from Tatung University in Taiwan. He has been a director of the Company

since January 2009.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lee Chung-Yin, Peter, aged 84, is a practicing doctor in Hong Kong. He
is the vice-chairman of the Sun Hing group of companies and director
of a number of other private companies. He is the Visiting Professor in
the Faculty of Medicine in the University of Birmingham of the United
Kingdom and other major universities and medical schools in China.
He served as the Head of the St. John Ambulance Association, the
chairman of Hong Kong Cheshire Home Foundation, the chairman of
the Hospital Governing Committee of the Cheshire Home, Shatin, and a
member of the Court and Council of the University of Hong Kong, etc.
His past public services include being past-chairman of Convocation of
the University of Hong Kong, past-president of the Hong Kong Medical
Association, founder-president of the Hong Kong College of Family
Physicians, member of the Basic Law Consultative Committee of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China, past-president of the Confederation of Medical Associations in
Asia and Oceania (CMAAO), past-president of the World Organisation of
Family Doctors (WONCA), and a WHO Consultant in Family Medicine.
He has been a director of the Company since March 1990.
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Ho, John, aged 65, is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong. He obtained
a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of London. In 1972, he
qualified as a solicitor and joined a major firm of solicitors. Mr. Ho is
a consultant of John Ho & Tsui. Mr. Ho was appointed an independent
non-executive director of Wa Ha Realty Company Limited in 1994 and
re-designated as a non-executive director in 2004; and also CEO and
executive director of China Western Investments PLC, a London listed

company. He has been a director of the Company since March 1990.

Tse Wan-Chung, Philip, aged 66, retired from DDB Advertising
Agency Operations in 1997 and remained a member of the Company’s
Worldwide Board until 2000. Mr. Tse had spent over 34 years in the
advertising industry. Besides his involvement in advertising, Mr. Tse is
one of the founders of the Hong Kong Artists’ Guild (“Guild”) in which
he has been serving as the Chairman of the Executive Committee since
1986. Mr. Tse was appointed as the Chairman of Guild since 1996. He
was also appointed by the Hong Kong Government as a council member
of the Hong Kong Academy of Performing Arts in 1991. Mr. Tse has
served as a member of the Young Presidents’ Organization since 1976 and
is currently a member of the World Presidents’ Organization. In recent
years, Mr. Tse focuses on marketing management and art and culture
related business. He founded BaoQu Tang Gallery of Art (“BQT”) in
2004. BQT has become a well known brand in the art scene in Hong Kong
and China. Mr. Tse also involved in auction business in Guangzhou. He

has been a Director of the Company since March 1990.

Gene Howard Weiner, aged 74, is president of Gene H. Weiner &
Associates, Inc., a business and technical consulting firm serving the
specialty chemical and electronics industries. The clients of Gene H.
Weiner Associates, Inc. have included several Fortune 100 companies. He
was a founding partner of Quantum Solar Group, Inc., a market research
organization in the photovottaic solar industry. His executive experience
includes that of director and the president of New England Laminates
Co. Inc., a leading supplier of copper clad laminates to the electronics
industry; vice president of sales and marketing of Dynachem Corporation
(now part of Dow Chemical), one of the world’s leading suppliers of
photopolymers specialty chemicals to the electronics industry; and
vice president of marketing of Oxy Metal Finishing, a major specialty
chemical firm. Mr. Weiner is on the Board of Advisors of P. D. Circuits,
Inc., a U.S. company providing computer aided manufacturing, design
for manufacture, test and other shared infrastructure services to the
printed circuit assembly industry, as well as on the Board of Advisors
of Christopher Associates, Inc., a provider of equipment and specialty

chemicals to the U.S. printed circuit industry. He is also a member of the
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Advisory Council of Post University’s MBA program. Post University,
founded over 100 years ago as a business school, is now ranked 18th
among online education providers according to the Online Education
Database (OEDDb), a U.S. national resource for online degree programs.
Mr. Weiner has been inducted into the IPC Raymond Pritchard Hall of
Fame, the IPC’s and the industry’s highest award and recognition. He

has been a director of the Company since April 1992.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WONG’S KONG KING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Chung Yiu Ming, Alvin, aged 63, joined the Group in 2002. Mr.
Chung is the general manager of Human Resources & Administration
Department of the Group. He has more than 30 years extensive HR&A
experience in the industry. Prior to joining the Group, he brought with
him well proven record in various regional multi-national organisations
such as Ampex, Digital Equipment, Data General and National
Semiconductor, etc. Mr. Chung holds a Graduate Diploma in Personnel
Management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly
named as HK Technical College). He is the visiting lecturer of the Hong
Kong Management Association, the Hong Kong Productivity Council
and Shengchun University, etc. for over the past 10 years. Mr. Chung
has been served as the Academic Chairman of the Hong Kong People
Management Association (former named as Hong Kong Industrial

Relations Association).

Cheng Ying, aged 39, joined the Group in 2010. She is now the company
secretary of the Group. She graduated from the Lingnan University with
a Honours Diploma in Company Secretaryship and Administration. She
is an associate member of both of the Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
Prior to joining the Group, she has about 15 years of experience in

company secretarial field.

WKK DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

Chang Jui Shum, Victor, aged 36, joined the Group in 2004. He is
now the Director and general manager of WKK Distribution Limited.
He is responsible for formulating the sales and marketing strategy,
and overseeing the development of new business. Mr. Chang holds a
Bachelor degree in Commerce (Accounting & Finance) from the Monash
University of Melbourne, and MBA from City University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Chang is the son-in-law of Mr. Wong, Senta and the brother-in-law
of Mr. Wong, Vinci.
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Fullwood, Lionel, aged 70, joined the Group in 1997. He is a technical
director and manages the Technical Services for the PCB arena company
wide. Prior to joining the group, he spent 34 years in the electronics
industry, specializing in PCB manufacturing. He has designed,
selected equipment, and been responsible for the design, building, and
management of seven PCB manufacturing facilities in Asia and US. Atthe
present time he is active in the Institute of Printed Circuits. He received
the Institute’s Distinguished Committee award in October of 2000, 2002
and 2007, as well as the IPC President’s Award for 2003. At the 2005
IPC EXPO Conference, Mr. Fullwood was appointed General Chair of
the IPC 110 set of committees. Mr. Fullwood holds a B.Sc in Chemistry
and Maths., and an M.A. in Molecular Biology and Polymer Chemistry.

He has authored or co-authored 38 technical papers and publications.

To Wan-Sang, Stephen, aged 55, joined the Group in 1979. He is
currently the general manager for New Product Development. He was
the general manager for WKK Source Electronics (HK) Limited, a joint-
venture with Source Electronics Asia Limited in U.S., mainly, a leader
in Integrated Circuit Programming Service. Mr. To has assumed various
positions along the growth of the group. He was the engineering manager
of World Storage Technology, a former manufacturing unit of the group
manufacturing floppy disk drives. He was also the service manager for
China, sales manager for electronic equipment in Hong Kong, director
and general manager for WKK (Thailand) Limited, director and general
manager of WKK Electronics Pte Limited and largely being responsible
for marketing of electronic equipment in various territories. Mr. To was
also the general manger for Special Products Group. Mr. To holds an MBA

degree from UK, and a Higher Diploma in Electronic Engineering.

WKK CHINA LIMITED
Yeung Chuen-Hau, aged 63, joined the Group in 1984. He is the director
and general manager of WKK China Limited and is responsible for

marketing the Group’s products and services in the PRC.

WKK ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT LIMITED

Lee Wai-Kong, Johnson, aged 52, joined the Group in 1989. He is the
director and general manager of WKK Electronic Equipment Limited
and is responsible for marketing the Group’s electronic products in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor degree in Science

(Electronics Engineering) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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WKK PCB TRADING LIMITED

Lui Kwok-Chak, Randy, aged 50, joined the Group in 1985. He is a
director and the general manager of WKK PCB Trading Limited and
is responsible for marketing the Group’s PCB products in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Mr. Lui holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical
Engineering and worked in the field of PCB manufacturing before he

joined the Group.

WKK ENGINEERING SERVICE LIMITED

Wong Man-Sing, Joe, aged 60, joined the Group in 1976. He is a director
and the general manager of WKK Engineering Service Limited. He
holds electronic diploma and has more than 30 years of experience in the

managing and servicing of equipment used in the electronics industry.

TAIWAN WKK DISTRIBUTION CO. LIMITED

Liu Chien Wei, alias, Martin Leou, age 47, joined Taiwan Kong King
Co., Limited in 1987. He is now the general manager and Director of
Taiwan WKK distribution Co., Limited and is responsible for overseeing
the day-to-day operations of Taiwan WKK Distribution business. He
has over 14 years experience in service and customer management. Mr.
Liu has also been appointed as the general manager of PCB division of
WKK China Shanghai office in October 2001 and is responsible for PCB
business in east China area. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor degree in Electrical

Engineering from the Qing Yun University.

WKK TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Wong Kwok-Wali, Jacky, aged 53, joined the Group in 1980. He is the
executive director of WKK Technology Limited. Mr. Wong had been
responsible for the Group’s OEM production operation and the marketing
of the Group’s semiconductors products in the early years and is currently
in charge of marketing the Group’s OEM services. He holds a Higher
Diploma in Industrial Engineering. He has been a director of WKK

America (Holdings) Inc. since June 2001.

Wong Lup-Keung, Ben, aged 55, joined the Group in 1996. He is the
director and general manager of Sales & Project Management Department
of WKK Technology Limited. He has extensive industrial experience in
various fields namely, R&D engineering, procurement, operations and
sales & marketing areas etc. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor degree in Science

(Electronics Engineering) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Tang Hang, aged 54, joined the Group in April 1990. He is the General
Manager of Manufacturing Operations in PRC Plant of WKK Technology
Limited. Mr. Tang has over 20 years’ manufacturing experience in both
computer and consumer electronics industries. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Radio and Telecom Technology from the South China

University of Technology.
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DONGGUAN NISSIN PLASTIC PRODUCTS CO., LTD.
Chan Wing Wah, Jonathan, aged 58, joined the Group in 2001 and
was appointed as the assistant general manager of manufacturing (WKK
Technology Ltd.). In 2005, Mr. Chan left the Group and furthered his
study. He obtained a Master of Science degree in Strategic Human
Resource Management from Hong Kong Baptist University. He also
holds a Master degree in Engineering Management from University
of Technology, Sydney, Australia. He rejoined the Group in 2008
and was promoted to managing director of Dongguan Nissin Plastic
Products Co., Ltd since 2009. He has more than 20 years experience
in electronics industries. Prior to joining the Group, he was the deputy
managing director in a plastic fabrication shop, the China operations
director of a trading company and the assistant general manager of an

OEM company.

WKK TRAVEL LIMITED

Ho Yim Wai Hing, Helen, aged 52, joined the Group in 1991. She
is the general manager of WKK Travel Limited. Mrs. Ho has over 18
years experience in administration. She holds a Diploma in Business

Management.

3 KINGS HOLDING LIMITED

Leung Kam-Fong, aged 69, obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
and a post-graduate Certificate in Education from the University of
Hong Kong. He began his career in technical education and training in
1965 at the Hong Kong Technical College and Hong Kong Polytechnic.
He joined the Vocational Training Council in 1982, founded the Chai
Wan Technical Institute in 1985, upgraded it to Hong Kong Technical
College (Chai Wan) in 1992 and subsequently became Deputy Executive
Director in 1993. In 1995 he was appointed Chief Executive of Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals until 2006. In these 11 years Tung Wah experienced
tremendous expansion, and he pioneered the development of a series of
modern Chinese Medicine Specialist Clinics. He was awarded honorary
doctorate degrees from Middlesex University, U.K. and Hunan University
of Traditional Chinese Medicine, PRC and holds visiting professorship
at Hunan and Chengdu University of Traditional Chinese Medicine,
PRC. He has also been appointed Vice-Secretary General of the World
Federation of Chinese Medicine Societies, PRC. He joined the Group in
2007 as executive director and chief executive of 3 Kings Holding Ltd.

to conduct business in healthcare and Chinese medicine.
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Wong Vinci, aged 40, is the director and general manager of 3 Kings
Holding Limited (“3 Kings”). He has been appointed as a director of 3
Kings on 1 December 2010. He graduated from the University of British
Columbia with a Bachelor Commerce (marketing major) degree. He is
a media personality well-known to Hong Kong and mainland China
TV viewers as a quality presenter with accuracy. He has extensive
net-working experience with the local media and therefore enhances
the advertising and sales promotion of company’s product. Mr. Wong
is the son of Mr. Wong, Senta and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chang Jui
Shum, Victor.

TAIWAN KONG KING CO., LIMITED

Liao Hung-Ying, Smale, aged 47, joined the Group in 1990. He is
president of Taiwan Kong King Co., Limited. Mr. Liao holds a Bachelor
of Electronic degree in Electronic Engineering of St. John’s & St.
Mary’s Institute of Technology. He was a supervisor for Taiwan Printed
Circuit Association from 2002 to 2009 and has become the Executive

Supervisor since 2010.

WKK JAPAN LIMITED

Masato Watanabe, age 64, joined the Group in 1994. He is appointed
as Representative Director and the President of WKK Japan Limited
on 1st April 2009. Prior to taking this position, he was a Director/Vice
President of Kysho America Corporation in charge of trading, sales and
corporate administration. He is a Bachelor of Arts degree holder from

Waseda University, Tokyo, Japan.

WKK AMERICA (HOLDINGS) INC.

Bacon Bruce, aged 52, joined the WIH Group in 1986 and transferred
to the WKK Group in 1989. He is the president of WKK America
(Holdings) Inc. Mr. Bacon is responsible for the Sales and Marketing
activities of WKK Technology Limited in North America. He has over
25 years experience in the electronics and computer industry. Prior to
joining the Group in 1986, Mr. Bacon managed several Customer Service
and Quality Assurance operations for U.S. based companies involved in

the computer industry.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are trading and distribution of
chemicals, materials and equipment used in the manufacture of printed
circuit boards and electronic products and the manufacture of electrical
and electronic products for OEM customers.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 39.

DIVIDENDS
An interim dividend of HK$0.01 per share amounting to HK$7,395,000
was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Board of Directors recommends a final dividend of HK$0.02 per
share be paid in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010. The
proposed final dividend will be payable on Thursday, 23 June 2011,
subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting, to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on
Wednesday, 8 June 2011.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders, as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company, as at the balance
sheet date, amounted to HK$236,831,000 (2009: HK$214,465,000). In
addition, the company’s capital redemption reserve and share premium
may be distributed in the form of fully-paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the Group’s retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 34
to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 10 to 11.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
approximately HK$770,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

32% of turnover and 27% of purchases during the year were attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers respectively. 8%
of turnover and 12% of purchases during the year were attributable to
the Group’s largest customer and supplier respectively. None of the
Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five
largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Senta Wong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Edward Ying-Chun Tsui

Byron Shu-Chan Ho

Bengie Man-Hang Kwong

Hamed Hassan El-Abd

Non-Executive Director
Hsu Hung-Chieh

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Peter Chung-Yin Lee

John Ho

Philip Wan-Chung Tse

Gene Howard Weiner

In accordance with Bye-laws 103 to 105 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Byron Shu-Chan Ho, Mr. Bengie Man-Hang Kwong and Mr.
Philip Wan-Chung Tse shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for election.
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The term of office for each Independent Non-Executive Director is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

At 31 December 2010, the interests or short positions of the Directors
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as
follows:

BBAL AT HE R AT B 2 HAREA N 7]
2 A0 S R A 1k ST o

Ay A RS BT AR A 3.1 30 2 Wi B 45 S8 S
AT Sl R S A R R AR
A ) R A S JF BUAT S K R S A
+ o

ExcES

HFE-FRET A= H > RIEE I
B (T8 BB ) 5535200 7 LB AT
2wz R sk > SRR BT F S T R
IR G BIREE S R E A /] R A i I 22 o
P A BR 2w (T g s B ) AR i 2 38 0 > A8 ]
TR AR Y T CHAT AT AR B 3 1 (G 76 B R
BB AGR IS XVER) 2 ety ~ R B 0y S i 7%
A AR BRI

The Company AN ]
Total
Interests
Total (including
Interests underlying
as % of shares)
of the issued as % of the
shareof  Underlying  share capital
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Senta Wong 4,000,000 1,572,000 122,012,723 207,800,000 335,384,723 4535 - 4535
B3t (Note 1) (Note 2)
(1) (ffit2)
Edward Ying-Chun Tsui 4,577,920 = = - 4,577,920 0.62 3,000,000 1.02
Byron Shu-Chan Ho 2,470,000 360,000 - - 2,830,000 0.38 3,000,000 0.79
firfgig
Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 3,150,000 - - - 3,150,000 0.43 2,250,000 0.73
Hade
Hamed Hassan El-Abd 750,000 = = - 750,000 0.10 2,250,000 041
Hsu Hung-Chieh 2,314,000 - - - 2,314,000 0.31 750,000 041
ERALS
Gene Howard Weiner 330,000 - - - 330,000 0.04 450,000 0.11




Notes:

122,012,723 shares were registered in the name of Wonder Luck
International Limited, which was wholly owned by Senta Wong (BVI)
Limited. The entire issued share capital of which was 50.25% owned by
Mr. Senta Wong and 49.75% owned by his wife, Ms. Wong Wu Lai Ming.
The references to 122,012,723 shares deemed to be interested by Mr. Senta
Wong (as disclosed herein) and Senta Wong (BVI) Limited (as disclosed
in the section headed “Interests of substantial shareholders”) relate to the

same block of shares.

207,800,000 shares were registered in the name of Rewarding Limited,
which was wholly owned by Greatfamily Inc. (which was in turn wholly
owned by Greatguy Inc.) for a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Senta
Wong and Batsford Limited were regarded as the founders (by virtue of
the SFO). The references to 207,800,000 shares deemed to be interested by
Mr. Senta Wong (as disclosed herein). Greatfamily Inc. and Greatguy Inc.
(as disclosed in the section headed “Interests of substantial shareholders”)
and Batsford Limited (as disclosed in Note 1(a) under the section headed
“Interests of substantial shareholders”) relate to the same block of

shares.

Certain Directors held qualifying shares in certain subsidiaries of the

Group on trust for the Company or other subsidiaries of the Group.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors

of the

Company or his associates had any interests or short positions in

the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of

its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)

as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the

SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Companies.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) which came

into effect from 30 May 2005, disclosed in accordance with the Rules

governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) is as follows:

@)

(2)

3)

(C))

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Eligible Participants
with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company
with a view to motivating the Eligible Participants to utilize
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group
and attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining an ongoing
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are

or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme
The Board may at its discretion grant options to any director
(whether executive, non-executive or independent non-executive)

or full-time employee of any member of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme

and % of issued share capital at 31 December 2010

The number of share issuable under the share options granted
under the scheme was 16,744,000 shares representing 2.26% of
the issued share capital at 31 December 2010.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme
The maximum number of shares issuable under the options to
each participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless it is approved
by shareholders in a general meeting of the Company. Any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or to any of their associates, in
excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are subject to

shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company.
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)

(6)

(7

(t))

(&)

The period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option

An Option may be exercised as specified by the Board in relation
to such option in its terms of grant which shall not be earlier than
1 year after its date of grant, nor be more than 10 years from its

date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

According to the share option scheme of the Company, no option
can be exercised within 1 year after its date of grant unless
otherwise determined by the board of directors of the Company.
In addition, options will vest as to 25% on the first anniversary of
its date of grant and as to the remainder on the second anniversary

of its date of grant.

The amount payable upon acceptance of option
HK$10.00 is payable by each Eligible Participant to the Company

on acceptance of options within 21 days from the Offer Date.

The Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price must be at least the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of a share as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the Date of Grant which

must be a business day;

(i)  the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the Date of Grant;
and

(iii)  the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the scheme

The Scheme will expire at the close of business on 29 May
2015.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 30

to the consolidated financial statements. Movements in the Company’s
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share options during the year are as follows: o
Outstanding
Outstanding at 31
at1 December
January Cancelled/ 2010
2010 Granted  Exercised lapsed during -%—%4
Date of Exercise Exercisable Vesting o 2 during during the year +ZH
Grant Price Period Period —H—=H  theyear theyear rER S =R
fihnM fitEm fHiEm L WAL MW%H’. RERTE /M WA
Category 1:
B
Directors %%
Edward Ying-Chun Tsui 22.7.2005 HK$0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
fRIEE EH0ser 21.7.2015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
21.7.2015 21.7.2007
Byron Shu-Chan Ho 2272005 HKS0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
g o6 2172015 2172006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
21.7.2015 21.7.2007
Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 22.7.2005 HKS0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
Bt H0s6r 2172015 2172006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
2172015 21.7.2007
Hamed Hassan EI-Abd 2272005 HK$0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
0567 2172015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000
21.7.2015 21.7.2007
Hsu Hung-Chieh 2272005 HKS0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
iz o067 2172015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 750,000 - - - 750,000
21.7.2015 21.7.2007
Gene Howard Weiner 22.7.2005 HKS0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
05670 21.7.2015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 450,000 - - - 450,000
2172015 21.7.2007
Total for directors 11,700,000 - - - 11,700,000
HHA
Category 2:
BH=
Employees 22.7.2005 HKS$0.56 22.7.2006- 22.7.2005- - - - - -
B2 H0s6r 217.2015 21.7.2006
22.7.2007- 22.7.2005- 4,532,000 - (216,000) - 4316000
21.7.2015 21.7.2007
26.9.2005 HKS$0.59 26.9.2006- 26.9.2003- 50,000 - - - 50,000
H097 259.0015 25.9.2006
26.9.2007- 26.9.2005- 678,000 - - - 678,000
25.9.2015 25.9.2007
Totaligoyjremployees 5,260,000 - (216,000) 5,044,000
Hivd
Total for all categories 16,960,000 - (216,000) - 16,744,000

Ve HEn




INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has been notified that, as at 31 December 2010, persons

(other than Directors of the Company) who had interests or short

positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded

in the

register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were

as follows:

Long

positions in shares of the Company

FERR2ES

RATEMEA > R —FFE+ A =+ —
H o> MRS I R R 055336k T LLEAF 2
gz mek o FIANL (BRA LR #ESRIN) R
7 A7 B R A 07 o A R A B

A2 ) By 2 3 A

Name of substantial

Percentage of
Number of total issued shares

shareholders Capacity shares held A B AT By
FEBH AT 56 P B METHSK
%
Batsford Limited Founder of discretionary trust 238,413,332 32.24%
and trustee (Note 1)
W15 2 L N B2 REN (Bt aE)
Greatfamily Inc. Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 207,800,000 28.10%
TR B AR (i E2)
Greatguy Inc. Trustee (Note 2) 207,800,000 28.10%
ZEEN (K17#2)
Senta Wong (BVI) Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 122,012,723 16.50%
VL 2 Wi (B FE3)
Wong Chung Yin Beneficial owner, interest of child or 69,017,251 9.33%
TR spouse and founder of
discretionary trust (Note 4)
BERPEA N~ Tl B RE £ K
W45 REZ2 B (Bt aE4)
HSBC International Interest of controlled corporations 47,066,952 6.36%
Trustee Limited AL 2 ME 25
LIM Asia Arbitrage Fund Inc. Beneficial owner 36,988,000 5.00%

A A

Notes:

Batsford Limited was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested
in 238,413,332 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the
following capacity:

(a) 207,800,000 shares were registered in name of Rewarding Limited,
which was wholly owned by Greatfamily Inc. (which was in turn
wholly owned by Greatguy Inc.) for a discretionary trust, of which
Mr. Senta Wong and Batsford Limited were regarded as the founders
(by virtue of the SFO). Please see Note 2 under the section headed
“Interests of Directors”.
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(b) 30,613,332 shares were held by Levy Investment Limited (which
was in turn wholly owned by Batsford Limited) for a discretionary
trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung Yin was regarded as the founder (by
virtue of the SFO). The references to 30,613,332 shares deemed to
be interested by Batsford Limited (as disclosed herein), Mr. Wong
Chung Yin (as disclosed in Note 4(c) below) relate to the same

block of shares.

2. Please see Note 2 under the section headed “Interests of Directors”.

3. Please see Note 1 under the section headed “Interests of Directors”.

4. Mr. Wong Chung Yin was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in
69,017,251 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the following

capacity:

(a) 3,500,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin personally.

(b) 1,320,000 shares were held under the name of Mr. Wong Chung
Yin and his wife, Ms. Woo Sin Ming.

(c) 30,613,332 shares were held by Levy Investment Limited (which
was in turn wholly owned by Batsford Limited) for a discretionary
trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung Yin was regarded as the founder
(by virtue of the SFO). Please see Note 1(b) above.

(d) 33,583,919 shares were held for The Pacific Way Unit Trust, of
which Guardian Trustee Limited was regarded as the beneficiary
(by virtue of the SFO). Mr. Wong Chung Yin was regarded as the
founder of the trust (by virtue of the SFO) in relation to the same
block of shares.

Save as disclosed, the Directors are not aware of any other persons who,
as at 31 December 2010, had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
of the Company is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 30 to 36.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company had been entered

into or existed during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or their respective associates
to acquire benefits by acquisition of shares or underlying shares in,

debentures of, the Company or its associated corporations.

PUBLIC FLOAT

On the basis of information that is publicly available to the Company
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this Annual Report,
the Company has complied with the public float requirements of the

Listing Rules for the financial year ended 31 December 2010.

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers will hold office until the conclusion of the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The financial statements for the year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves

for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Senta Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital to
the success of the Group and sustains development of the Group. The
Company aims at complying with, where appropriate, all code provisions
set out in Appendix 14 Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in the
CG Code of the Listing Rules. The Company has, throughout the year
ended 31 December 2010 complied with most of the Code Provisions and
certain deviations from the Code Provisions in respect of code provisions
A.2.1, A4.1 and A.4.2, details of which are explained below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises five Executive Directors, one Non-Executive
Director and four Independent Non-Executive Directors. One of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors process the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules. The directors, as at the date
of this report, are Mr. Senta Wong, Mr. Edward Ying-Chun Tsui, Mr.
Byron Shu-Chan Ho, Mr. Bengie Man-Hang Kwong, Mr. Hamed Hassan
El-Abd, Mr. Hsu Hung-Chieh, Mr. Peter Chung-Yin Lee, Mr. John Ho,
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse and Mr. Gene Howard Weiner.

The biographical details of the Directors (including relationship among
the members of the Board) are set out on pages 12 to 15 of this Annual

Report.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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The Board met four times in 2010 to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and to consider and approve the annual budget
for the Group. Individual attendance of each Board member at these

meetings is as follows:

Attendance
Executive Directors
Mr. Senta Wong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 3/4
Mr. Edward Ying-Chun Tsui 4/4
Mr. Byron Shu-Chan Ho 4/4
Mr. Bengie Man-Hang Kwong 4/4
Mr. Hamed Hassan El-Abd 4/4
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Hsu Hung-Chieh 2/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Peter Chung-Yin Lee 3/4
Mr. John Ho 4/4
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 4/4
Mr. Gene Howard Weiner 4/4

Other Board Meetings with the attendance of senior management were
held regularly during the year to discuss the day-to-day management
and administration as well as the recent business development of the

Group.

All minutes of the Board Meetings are prepared and kept by the
Company Secretary and open for inspection by Directors upon

reasonable notice.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by

the same individual.

The Company does not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Senta Wong currently holds both positions. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership and allows for more effective planning and execution of long
term business strategies. The Board also believes that the Company
already has a strong corporate governance structure in place to ensure
effective supervision of management. Such a structure provides many of
the benefits of having a separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

The structure includes:
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- Having the Audit Committee composed exclusively of Independent
Non-executive Directors;

- Having the Remuneration committee composed exclusively of

Independent Non-executive Directors;

- Ensuring that Independent Non-executive Directors have free
and direct access to both the Company’s external and internal
auditors and independent professional advice where considered

necessary.

The Board believes that these measures will ensure that our Independent
Non-executive Directors continue to effectively supervise the Group’s
Management and to provide vigorous control of key issues relating
to strategy, risk and integrity. The Board continually reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether any changes, including the separation of the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, are necessary.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be

appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

None of the existing non-executive directors of the Company is appointed
for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1
of the CG Code. In accordance with the provisions of the Bye-laws of
the Company, any Director appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first annual general
meeting immediately following his/her appointment. Further, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire from office. The directors to
retire by rotation shall be those who have been longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are similar to those in the CG Code.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the next
following annual general meeting after their appointment, and every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject

to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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According to the Bye-laws of the Company, all Directors (except
Executive Chairman or Deputy Chairman or Managing or Joint Managing
Director) of the Company are subject to retirement by rotations and re-
elections at the annual general meeting of the Company at least once
every three years. This constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. As
continuation is a key factor to the successful implementation of any long-
term business plans, the Board believes that, together with the reasons
for deviation from Code Provision A.2.1, that the present arrangement is

most beneficial to the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
The Remuneration Committee was established in April 2005. The
Committee now comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,

who are:

Mr. John Ho (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Peter Chung-Yin Lee
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse

The Committee was set up to consider and approve the remuneration
packages of the executive directors and senior management of the
Group, including the terms of salary and bonus schemes and share option
scheme. The Committee also reviews the structure, size and composition
(including the skill, knowledge and experience) of the Board from time
to time and recommends to the Board on appointments of Directors and

the succession planning for Directors.

The Committee met once in 2010. Individual attendance of each

Committee member at these meetings is as follows:

Attendance
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. John Ho (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 1/1
Mr. Peter Chung-Yin Lee 0/1
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 171
In Attendance:
Executive Director
Mr. Byron Shu-Chan Ho 171

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. All Directors
of the Company are responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on nomination and appointment of Directors and Board succession,
with a view to appoint to the Board individuals with suitable experience
and capabilities to maintain and improve the competitiveness of the

Company.
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Following recommendations by individual Directors, the Board
considers the professional background, experience and track records of
the relevant candidates. The Board also considers the recommendations
from the management team and other individuals who know the
candidates. Subsequently, the Board meets to discuss the nominations
and if appropriate, approve the appointment of the relevant candidates
as Directors.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2010, approximately HK$1,560,000
was incurred as remuneration to the Company’s auditor for the provision
of audit services. Other audit firms provided recurring audit services to
subsidiaries at a fee of approximately HK$1,195,000. During the year,
the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor and other audit firms for
the provision of non-audit related services to the Group are approximately
HK$302,000 and HK$604,000, respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The Committee now

comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, who are:

Mr. John Ho (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Peter Chung-Yin Lee
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse

A written terms of reference for the Audit Committee, which clearly
defined the role, authority and function of the Audit Committee, has

been adopted by the Group.

The Audit Committee met two times in 2010. Individual attendance of
each Committee member at these meetings is as follows:

Attendance
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. John Ho (Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2
Mr. Peter Chung-Yin Lee 172
Mr. Philip Wan-Chung Tse 2/2
In Attendance:
Finance Director 2/2
External Auditors 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements with
management and the Company’s External Auditors, and recommended

its adoption by the Board.
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DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i) overseeing
the preparation of the financial statements of the Group with a view to
ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and (ii) selecting suitable accounting policies and
applying the selected accounting policies consistently with the support
of reasonable and prudent judgement and estimates.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set

out on pages 37 to 38 of this Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and operating an
effective system of internal controls. Group Internal Audit was established
for many years to provide independent assurance to the Board and
executive management on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
controls for the Group. The head of Group Internal Audit reports directly
to the Group Chairman and the Group Chief Financial Officer.

Group Internal Audit adopts a risk-and-control-based audit approach.
The annual work plan of Group Internal Audit covers major activities
and processes of the Group’s business and service units. The audit plan
is reviewed and agreed by the Board. In addition to the agreed schedule
of work, Group Internal Audit conducts other review and investigative
work as may be required. All audit reports are communicated to the Board
and key members of executive and senior management. Audit issues
are tracked and followed up for proper implementation, with progress

reported to the Board, executive and senior management periodically.

During the year, Group Internal Audit conducted reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls over financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management functions and
reported their findings to the Board. After a review of the accounting
period ended 31 December 2010, the Board did not become aware of any
areas of concern that would have an adverse impact on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations and considered the internal

control systems to be effective and adequate.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has established its own website (www.wkkintl.com) as a

means to communicate with the shareholders.

The Company communicates with the shareholders mainly in the
following ways: (i) the holding of annual general meetings which provide
an opportunity for the shareholders to communicate directly to the Board;
(ii) the publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports
and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press releases of
the Company providing updated information of the Group; and (iii) the

availability of latest information of the Group in our website.

The chairman of the annual general meeting and the chairman/member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee were
available at the annual general meeting held on 1 June 2010 to answer

questions from the shareholders.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

18 M B AN

Iof
D

BRI KEGRTEIE B

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WONG’S KONG KING INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wong’s
Kong King International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 39 to 132, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2010, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of

this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

BOFRER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BWE-FE-FFEF A=+ —HILFEE
2010 2009
SEBE CEEE
Note HK$’00_0 HK$’0@
i #WT o BT
Revenue Y& i 5 5,192,120 3,095,362
Other income HAthIg A 7 4,614 2,981
Raw materials and consumables used JE#1 K} K E 8 F H FE (2,429,414) (1,613,597)
Purchases of finished goods f B R i (1,807,082) (814,063)
Changes in inventories of finished goods and
work in progress H i fi M AE B i A7 B 2 55 H) 90,717 15,781
Other manufacturing overhead At 5% BH 32 (73,494) (69,496)
Employee benefit expense & £ 48 1| BH % 9 (526,859) (412,417)
Depreciation and amortisation 785 K # & (59,080) (60,456)
Other expenses HAth [ 52 (197,879) (162,463)
Operating profit/(loss) #84#i F],/ (518) 8 193,643 (18,368)
Finance income fil & A 21,803 3,856
Finance costs fill & B4 (22,400) (8,290)
Finance costs, net il & 4 » {F{H 11 (597) (4,434)
Share of results of an associate JIF i — M5\ 7 2 245 19 723 (867)
Allowance for doubtful debt on amount due from
a jointly controlled entity J N5 — [ [F] 428 i B i 30 2 R AR (291) (708)
432 (1,575)
Profit/(loss) before income tax KB i i A, (k518) 193,478 (24,377)
Income tax expense [T 1HHL 37 12 (31,783) (11,849)
Profit/(loss) for the year AN4ERER A, (E51H) 161,695 (36,226)
Attributable to: HEJ& :
Equity holders of the Company 4/ 7] I HERFA A 13 135,102 (41,245)
Non-controlling interest JEFEHIERERS 26,593 5,019
161,695 (36,226)
Earnings/(loss) per share for
profit/(loss) attributable to the equity
holders of the Company during the year
AR RE A TR HER A NEAG S H], 7 Ofs18) 2 BIREF, Ok518)
(expressed in HK cents per share) (DA% £ 51)
— basic FEAK l4a 18.27 (5.58)
— diluted ## 14b 18.16 (5.55)
Dividends %5 15 22,188 -

The notes on pages 47 to 132 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2010

EHEERER

WoFE-FEFA=+—H

2010 2009
—E R o
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
BFRE 8T BT T
ASSETS & &
Non-current assets Jf i By & &
Land use rights 1= 1 i #E 16 15,109 15,470
Property, plant and equipment ¥ 3 - 5 Kk 17 596,317 579,672
Intangible assets FETY & & 18 15,363 13,066
Interest in an associate — [H] B /A 7] 2 HE #5 19 3,949 2,847
Interests in jointly controlled entities H[m] 2 il B 8 2~ 1 #5 20 697 988
Amount due from an investee company M — K] ZHE /AR Z FIA 22 - -
Deferred tax assets I ZEfi JE & 5 23 8,741 9,655
Available-for-sale financial assets HJ it i #5 4 fill ¥ 24 29,330 33,218
Long term deposits = #1445 1,892 1,973
Club membership and debentures & %% & & 75 12,250 11,795
683,648 668,684
Current assets i 8 & &
Inventories 7 & 25 683,713 470,761
Trade and other receivables & % K HAth FE SR 26 1,126,492 845,432
Deposits and prepayments %< K& FEA ZIH 65,851 52,132
Tax recoverable AJ Wi [7] i IH 1,423 1,645
Derivative financial instruments 74 4 i T E 27 2,114 -
Bank balances and cash #1745 8k & 5 4 28 1,083,337 293,854
2,962,930 1,663,824
Total assets & i 21 3,646,578 2,332,508
LIABILITIES £ f#
Non-current liabilities JE i B £1 {if
Obligations under finance leases — due after one year
il A BRI — i — AR AR E 33 178 318
Deferred tax liabilities %% %8 H £ fif 23 12 1
Retirement benefit obligations & A4 FI| 7 4 34 1,044 793
1,234 1,112

The notes on pages 47 to 132 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) &HEE&S&EBEXR(E)

At 31 December 2010 e e < S Y R e
2010 2009
TR R BT
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt 5 T T T

Current liabilities i 8 £ &
Trade, bill and other payables

B Ty REAT IR ~ JEAST T2 8 e JEL At JRE AT iRk 35 916,525 686,540
Current income tax liabilities B #%{JE £ & 22,071 5,303
Bank borrowings — due within one year ST — N —4EREIN 32 1,287,257 402,087
Bank overdraft, secured #1735 ¢ — C K4 32 11,951 3,553
Obligations under finance leases
— due within one year fll EAH BN — 7t —4F N E ) 33 171 153
Derivative financial instruments 774 4 fill T H. 27 11,565 1,264
2,249,540 1,098,900
Total liabilities £ {& A4 %i 2,250,774 1,100,012
EQUITY JBtH#

Capital and reserves attributable to the
Company’s equity holders

A 2 V) B RE R N A JE AR B fits

Share capital 4 29 73,952 73,930

Reserves fiiffii 1,229,906 1,090,328
1,303,858 1,164,258

Non-controlling interest FF 5 il 4 HE 35 91,946 68,238

Total equity FEHEZ%HA 1,395,804 1,232,496

Total equity and liabilities [ HE K& £ & 48 %1 3,646,578 2,332,508

Net current assets i Bl & & HH 713,390 564,924

Total assets less current liabilities & 7 88 f Vil i ) £1 1% 1,397,038 1,233,608

Senta Wong YT

Director HH

Byron Shu-Chan Ho InRiigsd

Director HH

The notes on pages 47 to 132 are an integral part of these financial 247 H EH 1328 Z i MR & AR 2 —
statements. A o



BALANCE SHEET

EEEER

At 31 December 2010 o E-REF A=+
2010 2009
e CEEE
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5E i3 BT T
ASSETS & &
Non-current asset JE i 81 & &
Investment in subsidiaries [ff &2\ 74 & 21 407,464 394,602
Current assets i B & &
Prepayments TE1+ 7 A 227 81
Tax recoverable R g 4155 E - 23
Bank balances and cash $R17 %5 ik M B 4 28 277 337
504 441
Total assets & 7 A4 407,968 395,043
EQUITY JBthE
Capital and reserves attributable to the
Company’s equity holders
Aoy v I RE R A N E AN B A J% fii A
Share capital x4 29 73,952 73,930
Reserves fififfi 31(b) 328,858 306,402
402,810 380,332
LIABILITIES £ 1&
Current liabilities i B £ f&
Amounts due to subsidiaries &} Bt /3 7] 2K IE 21 3,424 14,083
Accruals and other payables M2 Tl 5 Ho Al e {7 iRk 35 1,687 628
Current income tax liabilities B[ 1 JE & fi& 47 -
5,158 14,711
Total equity and liabilities 5 HE & £1 {8 44 % 407,968 395,043
Net current liabilities ¥ B £1 {& 5 (4,654) (14,270)
Total assets less current liabilities & A 48 {f i i7 B £ fi& 402,810 380,332
Senta Wong FE B
Director #=F
Byron Shu-Chan Ho o] 15} 188
Director HH

The notes on pages 47 to 132 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & &R & W EZE &R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BEZE-FFE T H T —HILEE
2010 2009
TR R ZERFILE
HK$°000 HK$’000
b3 T T
Profit/(loss) for the year Z4EJE i Fl, () 161,695 (36,226)

Other comprehensive income: Hfill % 5 UK %5 :

Currency translation differences £ [ 5, 25 #H 19,439 8,343
Release of exchange reserve upon dissolution of a subsidiary

Mt A ] o 2> 0 O 9 R S/ B £t A (1,505) -
Total comprehensive income for the year 7% 4F Ji %3 f W %5 48 %A 179,629 (27,883)

Attributable to: FE& :

Equity holders of the Company 4~/ @] EHERF A A 146,874 (34,677)
Non-controlling interest FF 4 il 144 &5 32,755 6,794
179,629 (27,883)

The notes on pages 47 to 132 are an integral part of these financial 2547 H % 55 1328 2 Fff 51 4 1 b 45 85 e 3k 2 —
statements. AN



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &ftiEmE R

For the year ended 31 December 2010

WEFFE A= 0L

Non-
controlling
Attributable to equity holders interest
of the Company Tk
A S w) R ARG s
Other  Retained
reserves  earnings
Share (Note 31(a)) (Note)
capital  FUbREfE  REEMN Total
A (WHiE31() (FE) sk

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
wHTE BN T EWT wWTE BT

Balance at 1 January 2009 * ~ZZJu4E—H — R Z &

73,930 115472 1,009,533 76,604 1,275,599

Comprehensive income %7 75 Yt £
(Loss)/profit for the year A<4F i (k54R) /i Fl
Other comprehensive income L {45 1 45
Currency translation differences £ % I it. 2

- - (41,245) 5,019 (36,226)

- 6,568 - 1,775 8,343

Total other comprehensive income L flt 45 £ 25 441

- 6,568

1,775 8,343

Total comprehensive income % 7 1 £ 441

- 6,568 (41,245) 6,794 (27,883)

Transactions with owners SR 556 % 2 % 5
Capital contribution from non-controlling interest £ ¥ Bk &
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest 3¢ {5 3£l ¥ 3R 2 1.8

_ - - 1,767 1,767
- - - (16,987) (16,987)

Balance at 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010
REZRAEFZA=ZT - HREZ-RE A 25

73,930 122,040 968,288 68,238 1,232,496

Comprehensive income 3 7§ £
Profit for the year Z%4F: B3
Other comprehensive income {47 & Wi 3

- - 135,102 26,593 161,695

Currency translation differences £ 1 [ 5.5 4 - 13277 - 6,162 19,439

Release of exchange reserve upon dissolution of a subsidiary

MR AT ] 9 i 5/ - (1,505) - - (1,505)
Total other comprehensive income L flt 45 £ 25 447 - 11,772 - 6,162 17,934

Total comprehensive income % 7 W} 25 4845

- 11,772 135,102 32,755 179,629

Transactions with owners SUBE#3 F:F % 2 X 5

Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of share options 17 B i HE R 58 1748
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest 37 {7 3F £ il # i 5.2 At B

2010 interim dividend —Z—ZAF L

22 90 9 - 121
- - - (9,047) (9,047)
- - (7,395) - (7,395)

Balance at 31 December 2010 i} —~Z—Z4F+ZH =1 —H 2 &k

73,952 133,902 1,096,004 91,946 1,395,804

Note:

As at 31 December 2010, included in retained earnings are statutory
reserves of HK$41,974,000 (2009: HK$38,626,000). These statutory
reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of these funds are
determined by the Board of Directors of the relevant subsidiaries in
accordance with the laws and regulations in the PRC and Taiwan.

The notes on pages 47 to 132 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2010

EHESRER
R Y ELE NS

2010 2009
ER R ZERRIAE
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
W& E ¥ T T T
Cash flows from operating activities B & EHE 2 H AR &
Cash (used in)/generated from operations Z8%5 255 (i) /Fiis8i 4 36(a) 17,307) 28,888
Income tax paid £ 1 384 (10,575) (22,359)
Tax on dividend declared by subsidiaries [ &/ 7 B IR 2 5 2 BiIE (3,294) (6,643)
Net cash used in operating activities
KOS5 T B i A (31,176) (114)
Cash flows from investing activities 3% & 1% B 2 Bl & i &
Interest received & UL B 7,940 3,856
Dividends income from available-for-sale financial assets
TR < T E BRI 3,109 2,981
Proceeds from dissolution of a subsidiary i 10— ] e s ) 2 T A R 1,505 —
Advance to jointly controlled entities FAZK T [m] 7€ i E i - (782)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment i B 473 - W E M sk (70,646) (16,745)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
W - S Mt T A3 R 36(b) 2,424 3,935
Proceed from advance from an associate
A& 3 — [T A ) 2 BGRTAS ROH - 2
(Advance to)/repayment from an associate
— B E AT Z P (B K ) 5
Additions of intangible assets s Fi #JE & & (3,413) (5.907)
(Increase)/decrease in short-term time deposits FEMFEZK Bhn) Wb (798,267) 250,271
Decrease in long term deposits = {4 435> 81 -
Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 8 FT{kH 4l &2 3,888 -
Purchase of club membership and debentures & & F5 K &% (320) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities
BOE R E) (), BB B A (853,708) 237,616
Cash flows from financing activities il & 7% B 2 3l & i &
Dividends paid £ 8 (7,395) -
Interest paid E. 175, (11,493) (8,290)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest 3245 JF £ il M A 5 2 % &, (9,047) (16,987)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings #i34#R 17 (& £ 15 2 H 3,119,241 1,633,358
Proceeds from issue of ordinary share upon exercise of share options
A e PG AR B 3 A 105 2 AR P A4 I 121 -
Repayment of bank borrowings fH#§R17 1 & (2,234,071) (1,880,726)
Decrease in obligations under finance leases
A BRI (122) (200)
Capital contributions from non-controlling interest
FEERIMEBOR 2 & - 1,767
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities
R B AR, (BT Bl R 857,234 (271,078)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2010

EHRERER(R)
WEFFE A H = 0L

2010 2009
SERE CEEAE
HK$°000 HK$°000
EW T BT
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
B BB S A (A 8D (27,650) (33,576)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
B—H— A28 e KB4 EAR 245,750 276,278
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ % 5 ) 2 5 28 10,468 3,048
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
Bt A=t A2 Ble kBl EE A 228,568 245,750
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 4 5 ¥ 4% (I H /3 At
Bank balances and cash #4745k & B 6 240,519 249,303
Bank overdraft, secured #4745 37 » A K4 (11,951) (3,553)
228,568 245,750

The notes on pages 47 to 132 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2010

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wong’s Kong King International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”’) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the trading and distribution of chemicals,
materials and equipment used in the manufacture of printed circuit
boards and electronic products and the manufacture of electrical

and electronic products for OEM customers.

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of its registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11
Bermuda and its principal place of business is 23/F, One Kowloon,

No.1 Wang Yuen Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar, unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 30 March 2011.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value

through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.

SO B R M
BE = F— TR = — I

— MR

Wong’s Kong King International
(Holdings) Limited ([ A</ J) K b
O T (RG] A S B ) 32 B A = g B A
R AR B T i T AL B - )
R 2 8 T RS E o DA B T
HFRGE B ETAEM o

AN T A B S By — [ 32 R
Yo 2 A BRA A H B A A2 A W B 5 32
Gy B A BR A R) Bl o R M e R
2 FyClarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda > Ifii H £ %%
SEHLEG 2y AU JURE JURE IS R IR A 1R —
SEILHE 1238 -

B 75 A FUIIAN > IS & R 85 i3 LA i
MRS WEGHMBREXCR —F
— AR = A AHE R e T

TR BORBER

A B O A B R R R A R
FEBCRANT o BRI A SIHISN B 2512
LN OB 5255 BUR -

2.1 HREETE

AT 2 A OF B R T IR A
W5 TS A Y B (T & s B S A
R ) W o A DR B TR R
SRS R A 3 A AT AL B
B Rl A R A T E AR KA
Weas 2 g e A R ('
WA AR TR ) 2 EAGE S
o

A R S AT s T S o M T — Bz
SV 5 i A JEUEE ) 4 T B A
at o A B IR RO I R AR 4R T 2
B Ak BRI AR R e W R
Z0 ) W B WM 2 AR - B
LGB mERL A ERE 2R
BN T 2 I - A U K B
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

New standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards effective in 2010 but not relevant

to the Company

o HKAS 17 (Amendment), ‘Leases’

. HKAS 39 (Amendment), ‘Eligible hedged

items’

. HKFRS 1 (Revised), ‘First-time adoption of
HKFRS’

. HKFRS 1 (Amendment), ‘Additional

exemptions for first-time adopters’

. HKFRS 2 (Amendment), ‘Group cash-settled

share-based payment transaction’

. HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business combination’

. HK(IFRIC)-Int 9, ‘Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives’

. HK(IFRIC)-Int 16, ‘Hedges of a Net Investment

in a Foreign Operation’

2 EEGEBORME (A

2.1 HREILEE (4E)

(a)

B E BSR4
7] J0E ] & R~ A5 RT R B
HHER B

o EEEEHERE 75T
(fze) T ]

. B s o 51 Bl 553947
(M) T4 s S IE
H |

o I B O HE ISR
SRUERT) [H KR &
s P s e HE B

o BB HERIE L
BB [E R
ZHINR

o T VRS R A2
AR ONIE S BUE 3
AT KA 5

o I PP ORISR
EASCTIRIEGE el

o U (I B B A R
BLZA®) — @Ryt
[EAG ST T

o T (BB RS A R
BEZAEE) —2B%I16
AESRURGEIE S S S <y
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a)  New standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards effective in 2010 but not relevant

to the Company (Continued)

. HK(IFRIC)-Int 17, ‘Distributions of non-cash

assets to owners’

. HKFRIC)-Int 18, ‘Transfer of assets from

customers’

. HK-Int 5, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand

Clause’

. The second improvements project to HKFRSs
were issued in May 2009 by the HKICPA

2 ERGEBORME (4

2.1 R (4E)

(a)

W A AR A AR LY
] B 2 B R~ A AT R B
AR it FE (4H)

o i (BRI B o
BZAE®) —@BE17
EARDE RPN E )
EEE |

o T (BB B O
BEZEE) —2BHI18
UANCESRLL T 3yl

o A RREASUE MBS
R 2 5 — RO
LB AT R MR K
MR 8

. FHEGRHEMAER %
T JUAFE TR BEMG A o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EEGFHEORME (4F)
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 HREBEEE ()
(b)  Thefollowing new standards, new interpretations and (b) DI ZEMM AR —E—E
amendments to standards and interpretations have F—H—HB 2 A
been issued but are not effective for the financial year [ R AR - H G R IR A
beginning 1 January 2010 and have not been early ZHETHER - Hral At B R
adopted. The Company is assessing the impact of HER R it FEZAEFT o« AR 28wl
these standards and amendments. The Company will Bl IE G % S R KA 7T 2
apply these amendments from their effective dates. B o KL Al SRR
H I8 e % 35 AT o
Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
mULT B 7B
AR AR
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party transactions 1 January 2011
b aRHERIF245E (BT LI S
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of rights issues 1 February 2010
FiEaFHENF325 (B0) iG] “E-FEZA-H
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited exemption from comparative 1 July 2010
IFRS/HKFRS 7 disclosures for first-time adopters
FE B AR 158 (B0 YR A BRI B B i e R/ “E-FELA-H
i B RS SRR B R A R
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2013
FE B S A0 SHTA “F = H
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement 1 January 2011
FiE(ABMERERRZEE) B4 RIEESHE RN R i
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments 1 July 2010
FiE (ARG RRZEE) B DRATRIHERAR “E-FELA-A

In addition, the third annual improvements project to
HKFRSs were issued in May 2010 by the HKICPA.

All improvements are effective in the financial year

of 2011.

BLAh > F et A G
T — T I A A
B At v R 22 5 = AR R ek
HEIHHE - PrAduEs R =%
AR BUR BEAEAL -



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2  FEGFIBURME (44)
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 HRELEEE ()

(c)  Amendments to or new Standards that are not effective () B —FAERRAER T
in 2010 and have not been early adopted by the 7K 2E [ 71 L7 IR A 2 Y

Group ZAEH B TR
Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
ML A %
B 2 A B R AL
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party transactions 1 January 2011
B G TR (55T WEALLS “F———A—H
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate financial statements 1 July 2009
A G R ERIE275E (16T G e “FFNELA-H
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of rights issue 1 February 2010
FEaRHEAEE (B0 et “F-FE-A-H
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Additional exemptions for first time adopters 1 January 2010
FB BB SR 58 () BRRAE BN “F-FH-A-H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2013
BRI A R0 5% SHTH “E-ZE-A-H
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement 1 January 2011
i (B REHRER ) - BB RIEEEHE BT HH “F———A—H
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments 1 July 2010
B (BRI IR A ) - R 195 DA TRIEH SR AK “E-FEEA-H

2.2

Consolidation

2.2 HilkH

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made

up to 31 December.

(a)  Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether

the Group controls another entity.

A B R R AL R KA
MEAREE T —HA=+—HIEZ
PR -

(a) ML A

B JB 2 ) 6 A A T A R B e
I B R BOR 2 B (D
AR B ER) o — R
A o A0 e A A 2
HE o TE W E A 4 TR 15 2 1
S EME - &% H R
A5 A7 A AT A7 (8 55 AT S8 2 T
FE T R e -



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are

de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured at
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any non-controlling interest. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated

income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are

eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.

2
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Interests in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
interests in associates includes goodwill identified on

acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or

made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised

in the consolidated income statement.

2
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

2.3

24

(c)

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control
and none of the participating parties has unilateral

control over the economic activity.

The equity method of accounting has been adopted
and accordingly, the consolidated income statement
includes the Group’s share of the results of jointly
controlled entities for the year, and the consolidated
balance sheet includes the group’s share of the net

assets of the jointly controlled entities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,

who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified

as the board of directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company’s functional

and presentation currency.

2
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in
profit or loss, and other changes in the carrying

amount are recognised in equity.

Translation difference on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets such as
equities classified as available-for-sale are included

in the exchange reserve in equity.

2
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(ii)  income and expenses for each income statement

are translated at average exchange rates; and

(iii)  allresulting exchange differences are recognised

as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain or

loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at

the closing rate.

2

FERE G BORBER (A7)

2.4 HMHBEE ()

(c)

SEHIE T2 A
A4 [ HE T i A ) e B
B HR B W N TR) 2 B R 2 A
Lo b 155 IR D 4% LA O A
RIVRE R

(i) HEEAMKITEINZ
HE AR A
Z T HE SIS

(i) A& 2 2 Wik K B 52
BRI 5 &

(iii) BT A RE 5 2 BE O e i /2
et 2 WL aR gy

EEE IR E R R
BB 2 1K 1 A B
FE A 2 B 5 2 B AR
ESR A o % B B 4 B )
WA SEHS R - REAR T RC SR 2
HE 5, 2 B A 1 A 3R e 5
T B 2RO H o

W B 98 A1 TR A A 2
B 25 ~F-{8 o B T AT 5% 6 A
R R ARURE > I
T BE AR



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs
are charged in the income statement during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives at the

following annual rates:

2.5% — 5%

Over the terms

Buildings
Medium-term leasehold

factory premises of the lease

Machinery and equipment 15% — 20%

Leasehold improvements, 15% — 20%
furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles 15% — 25%

Moulds 50%

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

Land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for land use rights are

accounted for as operating leases. They are expensed in the

income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease, or when there is impairment, the impairment is

expensed in the consolidated income statement.

Intangible asset

(a)

(b)

Technical know-how

Technical know-how is shown at historical cost.
Technical know-how has a finite useful life and
is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of technical know-how

over its estimated useful life of 7 years.

Internally generated product development cost

Cost incurred on development projects (relating to the
design and testing of new or improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following

criteria are fulfilled:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the
development projects so that it will be available

for use or sale;
(ii)) management intends to complete the

development projects and use or sell it;

(iii) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible

asset;
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Intangible asset (Continued)
(b) Internally generated product development cost
(Continued)
(iv) it can be demonstrated how the intangible
asset will generate probable future economic

benefits;

(v)  adequate technical, financial or other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell

the intangible asset are available; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the development
projects during its development can be reliably

measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period. Capitalised development costs are recorded
as intangible assets and amortised from the point at
which the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis

over its estimated useful life.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates,
jointly controlled entities and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8

29

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates,
jointly controlled entities and non-financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries,
associates or jointly controlled entities is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary,
associate or jointly controlled entity in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of

the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘long term deposits’, ‘amount due from
an investee company’, ‘trade and other
receivables’ and ‘bank balances and cash’ in

the balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(CONTINUED)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
2.9.1 Classification (Continued)
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(b)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to dispose

of the investment within 12 months of the end
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Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets EWHEESRMEERCSH

are recognised on trade-date — the date on which
the group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
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derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows Bk B 08 2 B4 i | 2 M

from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale

financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
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monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
and non-monetary securities classified as available-

for-sale are recognised in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement. Interest on available-for-sale
securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income statement.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement when the Group’s

right to receive payments is established.

2.10 Impairment of assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial

assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the group uses to determine that there

is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;
. A breach of contract, such as a default

or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

. The group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that the

lender would not otherwise consider;
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 B EEFIBURME (4)
(CONTINUED)
2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)

210 EEZ WAL ()

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued) (a) LIRS ARG IRZ B (FE)
. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter . E K N AT AR B

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

. The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial

difficulties; or

. Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified
with the individual financial assets in the

portfolio, including:

(i)  adverse changes in the payment status

of borrowers in the portfolio;

(i1))  national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets

in the portfolio.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
asset’s carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s

fair value using an observable market price.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised

in the consolidated income statement.

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For
debt securities, the group uses the criteria refer to (a)
above. In the case of equity investments classified
as available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised in the
separate consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the separate consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the separate consolidated income statement.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through

the separate consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11

2.12

2.13

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
measured at their fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of
item being hedged. Derivative instruments held by the Group
do not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
these derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the consolidated

income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress
comprises materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,

less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current

assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.14

2.15

2.16

217

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short — term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown in current

liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of

tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,

they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 B EEFIBURME (4)
(CONTINUED)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax

2.18 RV K 38 %iE ot 15 B

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end
of reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.18

2.19

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

(a)  Pension obligations
Group companies operate various pension schemes.
The schemes are generally funded through payments
to insurance companies or trustee-administered
funds, determined by periodic actuarial calculations.
The Group has both defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. A defined contribution plan
is a pension plan under which the Group pays
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit plans
define an amount of pension benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one
or more factors such as age, years of services and

compensation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect
of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the end of reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets, together with
adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses
and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will
be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating

to the terms of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive

income in the period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
income, unless the changes to the pension plan are
conditional on the employees remaining in service
for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In
this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a

straight-line basis over the vesting period.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund

or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by

reference to the fair value of the options granted:

. including any market performance conditions;

. excluding the impact of any service and non-

market performance vesting conditions; and

. excluding the impact of any non-vesting

conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the
income statement, with a corresponding adjustment

to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the
options are exercised is credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium, net of any

directly attributable transaction costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 B EEFIBURME (4)
(CONTINUED)
2.20 Provisions

2.20 A

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same

class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of

time is recognised as interest expense.

The Group records warranty provision at the time of sale
for the estimated costs that will be incurred under its basic
limited warranty. The specific warranty terms and conditions
vary depending upon the product and the country in which
it was sold, but generally includes technical support, repair
parts and labour associated with warranty repair and service
actions. The period ranges from one to three years. The
Group reevaluates its estimates at the end of each reporting
period to assess the adequacy of its recorded warranty

liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2  TEF BRI E (42)
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Revenue recognition

2.21 W R

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts

and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectability of the

related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b)  Commission income
Commission income is recognised on an accruals
basis in accordance with the substance of relevant

agreements.

(c)  Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the respective

services are rendered.

(d)  Ticketing and touring income
Income from tour and travel services and other travel
related services are recognised when the services
are rendered. Revenue from sale of air tickets are

recognised when the tickets are delivered.

(e) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the effective interest method.

(f)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22

2.23

2.24

Leases

(a)  Operating lease
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(b)  Finance lease
Leases of assets where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so
as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other short-
term and other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the

asset and the lease term.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group accepts
significant risk from a third party by agreeing to compensate
that party on the occurrence of a specified uncertain future
event are accounted for in a manner similar to insurance
contracts. Provisions are recognised when it is probable
that the Group has obligations under such guarantees and
an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle

the obligations.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the

Company’s shareholders.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

31

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair

value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk), credit

risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management

programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects

on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses

derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk exposures

on changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest

rates where necessary.

(a)

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

As most of the Group’s sales in the trading segment are
conducted in the same currencies as the corresponding
purchase transactions, and foreign exchange contracts
are used to hedge exposures where necessary, the
monetary assets and liabilities of the Group were
substantially hedged against each other and therefore,
no significant foreign exchange risk exposure is
noted. Sales in the manufacturing segment are mainly
denominated in United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar and therefore, no significant foreign exchange
risk exposure is noted on these sales transactions.
As the Group’s manufacturing base is located in the
PRC, certain purchases and expenses are denominated
in Renminbi. The Group has entered into foreign
exchange contracts to hedge part of the exposure.

At 31 December 2010, if Renminbi had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against Hong Kong dollar, with all
the other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have been HK$2,268,000 higher/lower mainly
as a result of the net foreign exchange gain/(loss)
on Renminbi denominated bank balances, trade
receivables and trade payables excluding the impact

of the foreign exchange contracts.

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash and time deposits held at bank,
the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets.
The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

31

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings.
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (Note
32). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s HKD
borrowings. The Group did not use interest rate swap
to hedge its cashflow interest-rate risk exposures in
2009. At 31 December 2010, the Group hedged part
of the cashflow interest-rate risk through interest
rate swap, which fix the interest rate of certain bank
borrowings.

At 31 December 2010, if interest rates on borrowings
had been 25 basis points (2009: 25 basis points) higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been HK$3,249,000
lower/higher (2009 post-tax loss: HK$1,015,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of higher/lower

interest expense on floating rate borrowing.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade
and other receivables and deposits with banks and
financial institutions.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management
has implemented internal control procedures for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group generally requires customers to pay a
certain amount of deposits when orders are made. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade receivables at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate allowance
on impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

31

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2010, 25% (2009: 29%) of the
Group’s total trade receivables comprises receivables

from top five customers.

The Group manages its credit risk by dealing with
credit worthy customers. Credit risk is managed by a
credit evaluation process which includes assessment
and evaluation of existing and potential customers.
In addition, for certain export trades, the Group
obtains provision of insurance protection against non-
payment risks arising from commercial and political
event through purchasing insurance from Hong Kong

Export Credit Insurance Corporation.

For trading business, to lower the Group’s exposure
to credit risk, the Group may request 90% deposits
and delivery payment from certain of their customers

upon delivery of equipments.

The Group believes that adequate provision for
doubtful debts has been made in the consolidated
financial statements. To the extent that information
is available, management has properly reflected
revised estimates of expected future cashflows in their

impairment assessment.

The Group has placed its cash in reputable banks.
Management does not expect any losses arising from

non-performance by these banks.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

31

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with

loan covenants.

Currently, the Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of funds
generated from operations and bank borrowings.
As at 31 December 2010, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$1,361,893,000 (2009: HK$1,445,865,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group is required to pay. The table includes both

interest and principal cash flows.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 A BEE(A)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BRI & ()
(¢c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) IRE)EEME S ()
Group 7S
Within
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
—4ER —EWE [[IEER:S At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

T W Tou T #W T

At 31 December 2010
RoE B A=t H
Trade, bill and other payables 916,525 - - 916,525
55 MEATHRGR - MEAT S48
I FA REAT K
Bank borrowings
(include interests) 1,289,903 - - 1,289,903
AT (BAEFLE)
Bank overdraft (include interests) 12,758 - - 12,758
PRATIE S (AR
Obligations under finance leases
(include interests) 182 182 - 364
il R B RS (R LR
Derivative financial instruments 11,565 - - 11,565
fiitE M TR

2,230,933 182 - 2,231,115

At 31 December 2009
AETNAETA=+—H
Trade, bill and other payables 686,540 - - 686,540
B 5 MEAT R - EAT S I
FoAt AT HRSK
Bank borrowings (include interests) 402,961 - - 402,961
SRAT A (A FLE)
Bank overdraft (include interests) 3,793 - - 3,793
SRATIE S (R AEFIR)
Obligations under finance leases
(include interests) 168 330 - 498
il AH R (SRR
Derivative financial instruments 1,264 - - 1,264

R TR

1,094,726 330 - 1,095,056
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

S B Ja\ B 4 BE (A

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 WMEEEREE )
(¢c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) IRB)EEME S ()
Company A2
Within
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
—AERN — B [[E:NR:S At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT BT BT
At 31 December 2010
RoF B AR
Other payables 1,687 - - 1,687
HoAth A BRER
Amount due to subsidiaries 3,424 - - 3,424
JREAST BB 2 ) 3T
5,111 - - 5,111
At 31 December 2009
K e
Other payables 628 - - 628
HoAthRE A R
Amount due to subsidiaries 14,083 - - 14,083
JREAST I g 2 W) I
14,711 - - 14,711
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 B FEE B

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for the Company’s shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets

to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less short-term time deposits

and cash and bank balances.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MABEBEE (A
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 EAE bR (A )
The net gearing ratio at year end is as follows: R Z FEAAMBIRMT ¢
2010 2009
F R SEEJUF
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
W T BT
Total borrowings 18 & 4% 1,299,557 406,111
Less: bank balances and cash & : $R17 4%k & B4 (1,083,337) (293,854)
Net debt & 55154 216,220 112,257
Total equity A8 1,395,804 1,232,496
Net gearing ratio V3 B4 £ fif H % 15.5% 9.1%
Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEfE

33

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that

is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

Effective 1 January 2010, the Group adopted the amendment
to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in
the balance sheet at fair value, this requires disclosure of
fair value measurements by level of the following fair value

measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (thatis, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived

from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The financial instruments that are measured at fair value as
at 31 December 2010 as detailed in note 27 are classified

under level 2.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are discussed below.

(a) Depreciation
The Group’s net carrying values of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2010 was approximately
HK$596,317,000 (2009: HK$579,672,000). The Group
depreciates the property, plant and equipment on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of 2 to 40 years and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method, at the rate 2.5% to 50% per
annum, commencing from the date the property, plant and
equipment are placed into productive use. The estimated
useful lives that the Group places the property, plant and
equipment into productive use reflects the directors’ estimate
of the periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the Group’s property,

plant and equipment.
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4 CRITICAL

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Estimate impairment loss of trade receivables

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer. If the financial conditions of customers of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional allowances may

be required.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of reporting period, and makes allowances for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for sales. The management estimates the
net realisable value for such finished goods based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at the end of reporting period and makes

allowance for obsolete items.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, property, plant
and equipment and available-for-sale financial assets
Investments in subsidiaries, property, plant and equipment
and available-for-sale financial assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being
the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to

take an impairment charge to the income statement.

4
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4 CRITICAL

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e)

®

(2

Provision for warranty

Warranty provision is based on the estimated cost of
provision warranties when sale is recognised. Factors that
affect the Group’s warranty liability includes technical
support, repair parts and labour associated with warranty
repair and service actions. The period ranges are depending
upon the product and the country in which it was sold and
the estimation is reviewed on an on-going basis and adjusts

the amounts as necessary.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in

the period in which such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally relates
to tax losses, depends on the management’s expectation of
future taxable profit that will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual

utilisation may be different.

Fast value of derivative financial instruments

The Group makes reference to the banks’ valuations to
determine the fair value of derivatives which in turn are
determined using various valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flow models and option pricing models.
Judgment is required in the calculation of such valuations.
Changes in the underlying assumptions could materially

impact profit and loss.
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REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold and services provided by the Group to outside customers, net
of return, allowances, discounts and sales related taxes. Revenue/

turnover recognised during the year is analysed as follows:

L&

W A A5 A B A1 SRS B S B R
A TR 5 T W BB R A B 2 T (1 B AR
B 3 ST B BR B o R

CLRERB N i, SE R AT

2010 2009

TR R ZEEIE

HK$’000 HK$’000

w0 T

Sales of goods &8 F4) 5,123,849 3,032,478
Commission income 1l 4 1 % 11,421 9,953
Service fee income AR LU % 55,088 50,473
Ticketing and touring income 2255 % il #% I 35 1,524 1,183
Others HAt 238 1,275
5,192,120 3,095,362

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Chief Operation Decision-Maker (“CODM”) has been
identified as directors of the Company. CODM reviews the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. It has determined the operating segments
based on these reports. The Group is currently organised into two
operating segments — trading and manufacturing. These segments

are the basis on which the Group reports its principal activities

information.

Trading — trading and distribution of chemicals,
materials and equipment used in the
manufacturing of printed circuit boards
and electronic products

Manufacturing —  manufacturing of electrical and electronic

products

5 VR E R
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2010

are as follows:

Trading Manufacturing

5 wh BB (A7)
WE - F B A= R
2SRRI -

Others Eliminations Consolidated

=] B H Al 1191 B
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T T T T T BT
Revenue £
External sales #MRH & % 2,449,113 2,689,936 53,071 - 5,192,120
Inter-segment sales 7 #f NS4 348,278 2,487 32,494 (383,259) -
Total 48%H 2,797,391 2,692,423 85,565 (383,259) 5,192,120
Results 3£ 4
Segment results 73 B 2E 4% 152,123 42,011 (491) - 193,643
Finance (costs)/income, net
g (AR WA > iFHE (2,946) 2,974 (625) - (597)
149,177 44,985 (1,116) - 193,046
Share of results of an associate
ST A — [T 8 o W) 2 2E A 723
Allowance for doubtful debt
on amount due from a
jointly controlled entity
JRE e — [ 3 [ 2 o) A RO
ORI (291)
Profit before income tax
I i 59850 i i ) 193,478
Income tax expense 1583 (31,783)
Profit for the year Z<4F i {iii £

161,695



SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2009

g iR E B (4 )

H,E

FEIET A=t H L

are as follows: ZAIRE R R
Trading Manufacturing Others Eliminations Consolidated
®5 % H At i St
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T T T T T
Revenue
External sales #8840 1,148,821 1,900,896 45,645 - 3,095,362
Inter-segment sales 430 (Al § 5 %8 171,757 2,320 19,802 (193,879) -
Total A4%H 1,320,578 1,903,216 65,447 (193,879) 3,095,362
Results 4%
Segment results7 Hh A& (23,716) 11,821 (6,473) - (18,368)
Finance (costs)/income, net
B (RAS) A - FHE (1,401) (3,038) 5 - (4,434)
(25,117) 8,783 (6,468) - (22,802)
Share of results of an associate
Fr A — [T 7 2 R 22 A (867)
Allowance for doubtful debt
on amount due from a
jointly controlled entity
JRE S — ] (] 42 T B e O
AR IRABEM (708)
Loss before income tax
i i 455 il s 18 (24,377)
Income tax expense 71583 (11,849)
Loss for the year 4F [N 515 (36,226)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2010 are as RoFE—FFE+ A=+ —HZHHE
follows: E BLE AR
Trading Manufacturing Other Consolidated
¥ 253 HoAt e
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T T
Assets ¥ 7
Segment assets 43505 & 1,059,199 2,483,756 103,623 3,646,578
Liabilities £1 1
Segment liabilities 733 & {& 539,288 1,653,256 58,230 2,250,774

)




SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2009 are as

6 AR A
A BEIUEF A S 0 2

follows: EHEEENT
Trading Manufacturing Other Consolidated
= B HAtb A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T e i BT T Sk TH
Assets & &S
Segment assets 731 & /& 814,494 1,414,585 103,429 2,332,508
Liabilities £1 &
Segment liabilities 77 & £ & 436,956 640,174 22,882 1,100,012

An analysis of the Group’s capital expenditure, depreciation and

ASE E R 5y AW S 2 EABH S ~ YT R

amortisation by segments is as follows: e AT -
Trading Manufacturing Other Consolidated
®5 3% HAth B
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W TT T T T IT T IT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
WE-F-FTHEF+_H=+—HILFE
Capital expenditure & 4% B 3% 30,372 29,724 10,550 70,646
Additions of intangible asset 7% & M & & 3,413 - - 3,413
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Wik ~ s K e 12,238 40,857 4,509 57,604
Amortisation of land use rights
{8 A - 361 - 361
Amortisation of intangible asset
Y 5 E 1,116 - - 1,116
For the year ended 31 December 2009
WEFZNFEF A=t —HILFE
Capital expenditure & 4% 52 10,581 3,726 2,438 16,745
Additions of intangible asset ¥ & #EJE & 7 5,907 - - 5,907
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Wik ~ s KT 11,847 42,959 4,638 59,444
Amortisation of land use rights
- bS8 T S - 361 - 361
Amortisation of intangible asset
T 5 651 - - 651




SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group is domiciled in Hong Kong. Revenue originated
from Hong Kong, Mainland China and other countries are
HK$3,791,653,000 (2009: HK$2,472,027,000), HK$837,231,000
(2009: HK$450,277,000) and HK$563,236,000 (2009:
HK$173,058,000), respectively.

The total non-current assets other than intangible assets and
deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong and Mainland China
and other countries are HK$53,233,000 (2009: HK$55,330,000),
HK$533,591,000 (2009: HK$539,552,000) and HK$72,720,000
(2009: HK$51,081,000), respectively.

S ERE B ()

KREBFFREE - KAFE -
A b B At B 58 2 0 g g Rl A v
3,791,653,00000 ( — & & JL 4« i ¥
2,472,027,0007C ) ~ #s ¥5837,231,00070
(ZZEZIJLA 3 1450,277,00000 ) K
5 1563,236,00000 ( ~FEZILF ¢ ¥
173,058,0007C) °

P77 v~ v A R A R R 2 9
T R AR (R AR Y R
JE B TE K ) 43 Al A s 53,233,00000
(ZEZEIJLF ¢ i %55,330,00000) > it
#533,591,00000 ( — & F JLAF : i ¥
539,552,00070) M # #72,720,0007G ( —
FERIUAF - #¥51,081,00000) °

OTHER INCOME HoAb e A
2010 2009
R R “EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T BT T
Dividends from available-for-sale financial assets
AL 2 RS 3,109 2,981
Gain on dissolution of a subsidiary
fift B — [H] W) 2 ) 2 Wi 1,505 -

4,614 2,981




OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 8 RBEBAMN (i)

Operating profit/(loss) is stated after charging/(crediting) the AR R &R, (5EA) R
following I £ JEAR DR
2010 2009
S e
HK$°000 HK$’000
E¥ T BT
Auditors’ remuneration % 2l 4 3,661 2,800
Net provision for/(write-back) of impairment loss on trade and other receivables
7 (B R) B 5 R H AU SR 2 (B s 1R v A 5,557 (6,876)
(Write back)/Allowance for obsolescence of inventories B #5175 (3 1]) /f5 5 (1,350) 1,961
Operating leases rental in respect of land and buildings
b AT 2 ST B4 13,868 17,068
Net foreign exchange gains [ 5o.Ui 5 15 5H (2,626) (1,515)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEYIZE ~ B Kk 510 569
Net fair value (gain)/loss on financial derivatives
ST TR 2 PE i) s tR A (5,725) 547
Write back of impairment loss on club membership and debentures
158 ] A AR R R 1R (115) (2,300)
Impairment loss on amount due from an investee company
JRESL— [H] =2 RO R 2 SR RS 1 - 1,444
Impairment loss on available for sales financial assets
TR A (P 1R - 117




EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

D LA A B 52 (R Is )

2010 2009
e e
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T T
Salaries, wages, commission and allowances
B~ TE A R 501,091 395,360
Pension costs — contributions to defined contribution plans (Note (a))
R4 BAR — 1) S AR B (R (BT () 5,639 5,944
Pension costs — contributions to defined benefit plans (Note 34)
ARG AR — 1) A AR A F B K (B RE34) 752 695
Social security costs f1 & {f i i A 19,377 10,418
526,859 412,417

(a)

Where there are employees who leave the defined contribution plans
prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.
The amount of forfeited contributions utilised in this manner during

the year was HK$206,000 (2009: HK$75,000).

At the end of reporting period, there are no significant forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the retirement
benefits schemes and which are available to reduce the contributions

payable by the Group in future years.

The total employer’s contribution to the above retirement schemes
and other local arrangement charged to the consolidated income
statement, net of forfeited contribution amounted to approximately
HK$5,639,000 (2009: HK$5,944,000).

(a)

i B A R A2 i R AR
ML # > A A2 R AL R i
PR WL R > AR DAy B A
B VR A A R 4 2 T 15206,000
JC(ZEFZIUAE  #H75,00000) °

T IR - MR SRR DR AR AR A
A ) T 2 AT A A R
o A€ A B2 A 3t R 2 EE R A B I

K

R 32 3 1 4R AT S H A b 2
2 o K D R B AN E
B o P B2 Bl TR i it kA
#:5.639,0007C ( —E X JUAE « kg
5,944,0007C) °



10

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of the directors of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2010 is set out below:

10 o o v AT B I <&

(a)

o

REE_F-FFE+A=1T—H
1l AR A 2y W) 3 2 e 08 A

T
Salaries,
wages, Employer’s
commission  Performance  contribution
and related to pension
allowances incentive scheme
Name of director Fee #M 1%~ payments AR {k&5HH Total
HREA wa e R KBRS ZREEMK At
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
EH T ¥ T BT W T T
Executive directors 7% =
Senta Wong T il 137 7,457 2,344 299 10,237
Edward Ying Chun Tsui 7% E% 137 3,704 1,847 185 5873
Byron Shu Chan Ho {4 137 3,386 1,820 169 5,512
Bengie Man Hang Kwong B {f 100 3419 835 171 4,525
Hamed Hassan EL-ABD 100 2,744 651 113 3,608
Non-executive director FF§(17H# 5
Andrew Sheu, Hsu Hung Chieh #7715 162 914 2437 29 3,542
Independent non-executive directors
B FMiTES
Peter Chung Yin Lee 25 {1 100 50 - - 150
John Ho 478 100 50 - - 150
Philip Wan Chung Tse 7 ! 100 50 - - 150
Gene Howard Weiner 100 - - - 100
1,173 21,774 9,934 966 33,847




10

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

10 o Ko AR B IE I < (A7)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) THEFEME )
The remuneration of the directors of the Company for the W E _EEZNE+ A=+ —H
year ended 31 December 2009 is set out below: 1EAF B AR 2N W) 3R 5 2 M4 8 G
T
Salaries,
wages, Employer’s
commission Performance  contribution
and related to pension
allowances incentive scheme
Name of director Fee ¥ - T& - payments HRIREF E Total
EHEEA e Maki KBS ZEEMK AEt
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$7000
T BT BT BT BT
Executive directors $117 # 5
Senta Wong T LA 100 7,364 - 294 7,758
Edward Ying Chun Tsui EH 100 3,675 - 184 3,959
Byron Shu Chan Ho {41 100 3,365 - 168 3,633
Bengie Man Hang Kwong i 5 100 3,324 - 166 3,590
Hamed Hassan EL-ABD 100 2,668 - 110 2,878
Non-executive director FF 8117 #
Andrew Sheu, Hsu Hung Chieh 77 #4 159 782 477 26 1,444
Independent non-executive directors
B AT ES
Peter Chung Yin Lee 2= f'& 100 50 - - 150
John Ho fil #7%) 100 50 - - 150
Philip Wan Chung Tse {7 it 100 50 - - 150
Gene Howard Weiner 100 - - - 100
1,059 21,328 471 948 23,812
No directors waived any emoluments during the years ended WEE ZF —FERZEEIAE
31 December 2010 and 2009. T A=t —HILFE > #EiEs
AL AT -
Five highest paid individuals (b) T FHMAL

The five highest paid individuals in the Group were executive
directors of the Company for the years ended 31 December
2010 and 2009 whose emoluments were included in

note 10(a).

KM E BT RN
FEt oAt HIMEEY B4R
B AANRRGES
% 2 FMB M 10(a) ©
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FINANCE COSTS, NET 11 BE A » FHE

(a)

(b)

(a)
2010 2009
e 48 “ETIE
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T T
Interest income on: FLEYTA :
— bank deposits SRATAERK 7,919 3,804
— others HAth 21 52
Net foreign exchange gain on bank deposits
SRATAF 2 W SN 4 4R 13,863 -
21,803 3,856
Interest expense on: #5237 H -
— bank borrowings and overdrafts wholly repayable within five years
JHRN HAR N R BUEE 2 SRIT I B B (11,477) (8,261)
— finance leases wholly repayable within five years
RS AR R 2 R 2 A (16) (20)
— others HAth - )
Fair value loss on foreign exchange forward
contracts and interest rate swap
S ME 3 10 15 40 B R e 4 2 O P s 4R (10,907) -
(22,400) (8,290)
Finance costs — net fll & WA — {§HH (597) (4,434)

During the year, the Group has entered into certain (b)
arrangements to mitigate the exposure arising from

the strengthening of RMB. These includes USD/HKD
denominated bank borrowings, RMB denominated bank

deposits, interest rate swap contracts and foreign exchange

forward contracts, which are disclosed in notes 27, 28 and

32 to the financial statements.

The financial effect of these arrangements for the year ended
31 December 2010, which are included in the above net
finance costs (Note 11(a)), are as follows:

RN AR EET AT L PELARE
RN R FHE T EA 2 AW &
&R M 5127 ~ 28 32T 4 7%
ZPAFETC U REEHE I SRAT
AN RS FHE R SRITAE R ~ R
WA K AR A K o

BE-F-FF+_A=t—A Ik
FE D R MR A
7 S A VR B (B RE 11 (a))
LONNE

HK$’000
T
Interest income on bank deposits $R1 7172 Z FLE YA 6,645
Interest expense on bank borrowings 817 15 £ 2 F|.8 37 (2,850)
Fair value loss on foreign exchange forward
contracts and interest rate swap
S A G & SR i ) 2 A TE 1R (10,907)
Net foreign exchange gain on bank deposits 47 F73x 2 e 5. 4 75 48 13,863

6,751




11  FINANCE COSTS, NET (CONTINUED)
(b) (Continued)
The interest rate swap and foreign exchange forward
contracts are stated at its fair value as at 31 December 2010
and the corresponding changes in fair value are recorded in
the income statement. The above gain/loss on these contracts
does not represent their ultimate gain/loss, which will be
determined upon the maturity of these contracts in 2011.
There would be a net gain on these foreign exchange forward
contracts on maturity dates based on the contracted forward

rates and the spot rates at the inception of these contracts.

11

il AR o R ()

(b) (#F )
RoE =T ZH=Z1—H o F
%?ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁl\l@i%ﬁ’*“’ﬂﬁu/ﬁ\/é¥
TEFNHE > T 28 F- (B A 1 5 58) 51 AR
W% - LSz R
NIE RS S E g < Fi W) e
G RIAE T — — B W T
TE o BN RZE A RIS AR
HAR 5 R B EA R 5154 > 5258 Hh i
EIAE KB B A R RS

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 Fifasi i
2010 2009
“F A e
HK$°000 HK$°000
W T BT T
Current income tax B[/ AT 1581
— Hong Kong profits tax 7 #5150 3,067 1,177
— Other jurisdictions including PRC income tax
Foft A MER - G4 B B AR 24,390 10,846
27,457 12,023
Under provision in prior years 8 {+4F B A 2
— Hong Kong it - 1,995
— Other jurisdictions including PRC income tax
FofbmEMER - G4 B B A 107 46
107 2,041
Deferred income tax (Note 23) ZEAE 5B (K 5E23) 925 (8,858)
Withholding tax on dividend declared by subsidiaries
LR 7] O E RS < TR 3,294 6,643
31,783 11,849

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits for the year. The subsidiaries
established in the PRC are subject to enterprise income tax rates
ranging from 12.5% to 25%. The subsidiaries in Taiwan are subject
to corporate income tax rate of 17% (2009: 25%). Taxation arising
in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.

é%%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ)ﬁuztﬁ Z Al LA U
PR R16.5% (ZFRIE : 16.5%) 7
B o A R B AL 2 B S A R ZE 4 12.5%
5% P HHIN B ETER - A2 W
B E AT % (FEEILAE  25%) Bl
BRI T IASBE o HoAh R LR IR 2 B
T R4 A B A A I 2 ) 2 B R o
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate

applicable in Hong Kong to profits/(losses) of the group companies

as follows:

12 a2 i (4)

A SR B B BT AR BT A (5 1R 2 BLIH
BRLAE T 28w R s 4R) 4 7 v
BRI 2 BBl a2 22 SR

2010 2009
“EFE “ETNAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T BT
Profit/(loss) before tax [&BifT i Fl~ (ktE) 193,478 (24,377)
Tax at domestic tax rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%)
HEHBIR16.5% (“FTIUF  16.5%) 5t B ZBUA 31,924 (4,022)
Effect of different tax rate of operation in other jurisdictions
oAby IR I A0 2 2 AR B R 2 S 1,981 2,148
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose
AR IR B S 2 B 5 2 1,689 5,258
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose
TFIHRRBLA 2 BB 2 (4,207) (3,767)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised
B SR AR 2 BIH G 1R (4,554) (365)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
ER AR THEPATR S 2 4,054 4,660
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
i RR S AT AR B RE 2 Bl I 16 (248) (166)
Effect of tax exemptions granted to foreign subsidiaries
TSI 2 W) P M T o 2 R (2,114) (367)
Under provision in prior years 48 {4 B ##A £ 108 2,041
Others HAth (144) (214)
Withholding tax on dividend declared by subsidiaries
HUR B 7] O E RS < TN B 3,294 6,643
Income tax charge T B 32 31,783 11,849

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of

HK$29,752,000 (2009: HK$28,954,000).

13 A2 v JREHE AN A ik A

AN T B RE AT A 8 R A AR 2N 7 B
MR R AR > 4% DLk %529,752,0007T
(CFEILE © #128,954,0007C) £ R o



14 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

14 HRAEMN,(EE)

Basic (a) HEA
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the BRI R, (GH8) Ti3 AR A )
profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company B HEF5 A N A i A (s 18)) BR
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue DVAR A 2 384T 05 40 I - 1 et
during the year. B oo
2010 2009
g EFNE
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of
the Company (Hong Kong thousands dollar)
A AR HERF A A 6 R, O ) (s To0) 135,102 (41,245)
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (thousands)
C AT 2 B R 2 B (T 1) 739,463 739,304
Basic earnings/(loss) per share
(Hong Kong cents per share)
TEEA A, Okt (BRI 18.27 (5.58)
Diluted (b) R

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by
adjusting weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential

ordinary shares.

IR, (B4R $i B St
JIT AT Y A 0 L 20 I v ) AT A
S 2 B IR 2 B -
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EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (CONTINUED)
(b) Diluted (Continued)

14 wREFM,(ER) (H)

(b) W (A)

2010 2009
S “EEIUE
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders
of the Company (Hong Kong thousands dollar)
AN F ERER A AN EIL 3R] Ul 4E) GEEToT) 135,102 (41,245)
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (thousands)
L BT 40 R RET- 2 3 (T 1) 739,463 739,304
Adjustments for share options (thousands)
U IR A (T 1) 4,373 3,201
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for diluted earnings/(loss) per share (thousands)
AR A i 2 A Ul 1) 2
T IR W (T 1) 743,836 742,505
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
(Hong Kong cents per share)
R, (R18) (Al 18.16 (5.55)
DIVIDENDS 15 BE
2010 2009
TR R “ETRE
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T T
Interim dividend, paid of HK$0.01 (2009: nil) per share
FIIRE > EATERER0.01 7T (—FFILE - HEET) 7,395 -
Final dividend, proposed of HK$0.02 (2009: nil) per share
KMIEE > BRRA I 0.0200 (—EEILF - HZo0) 14,793 -

22,188
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LAND USE RIGHTS

16 L Hbfli I RE
AL B 2 b Al R A 4 TE P R R AR

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating

lease payments held in the PRC under leases of between 10 to

MWI0ES504E 2 A HE A 2 TR B8 &

50 years. I o
2010 2009
R R ZEEIAE
HK$’000 HK$°000
i T T
At 1 January JA—H—H 15,470 15,831
Amortisation ¥ 361) 361)
At 31 December i1+ —H =+—H 15,109 15,470
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 W3 - BB Bkt
Freehold Medium-term Leasehold
land and leasehold improvements,
buildings factory furniture
in overseas premises ~ Machinery  and fixtures
#WMKA  inthe PRC and e Motor
E ] WERS  equipment PR vehicles Moulds Total
i £ famE  BEESE  GREREE R 0 ek
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
BT BT T BT T T T
Net book value at 1 January 2010
A R-BE—A-HZRE 32,072 403,268 109377 28221 6,734 - 579,672
Exchange translation adjustments 7 7% 3,367 (205) 1,542 2 109 - 4815
Additions IR & 12,439 10 46,978 1517 3,702 - 70,646
Disposals ifi & - (465) (2,170) (16) (283) - (2,934)
Depreciation e (482) (17,776) (29,886) (6,847) (2,613) - (57,604)
Tmpairment loss written back £ £ 1k s 18 1,722 - - - - - 1,722
At 31 December 2010
WEZ—FEF A= —H 49,118 384,832 125,841 28,877 7,649 - 596,317
At 31 December 2010
NE-TEF A =T —H
Cost FiLR 63,158 475,719 535,033 119,893 28,747 4,190 1,226,940
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
R (14,040) (90,887) (409,392) (91,016) (21,098) (4,190) (630,623)
Net book value BRI i (i 49,118 384,832 125,841 28,877 7,649 - 596,317
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

17 W3 ~ Wl B i (7))

Freehold Medium-term Leasehold
land and leasehold improvements,
buildings factory furniture
in overseas premises ~ Machinery  and fixtures
#JhkA  inthePRC and il Motor
Ey W] WEHES  equipment PR vehicles Moulds Total
Rt MARE  BEREG  GRRER it BB ik
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W BT W Tx EMTx W% #WTx BT
Net book value at | January 2009
WEEENGF—H—H 2R E 35,637 414282 135,403 33,152 8,322 - 626,796
Exchange translation adjustments 7 3 % 983 262 148 m 53 - 1,723
Additions V5 & - 1,126 10,853 2,735 2,031 - 16,745
Disposals ifi & (2497) (720) (483) (182) (622) - (4,504)
Depreciation 47 (407) (11,682) (36,544 (7,761) (3,050) - (59,444)
Tmpairment loss recognised £ FE 783 (8 k518 (1,644) - - - - - (1,644)
At 31 December 2009
REZENEFZAZA—0 32,072 403,268 109,377 28221 6,734 - 579,672
At 31 December 2009 m
RZZFENEFZ=1—H
Cost iR 46,194 476,468 509,830 111,859 28,339 4,190 1,176,880
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
T (e (14,122) (13200)  (400453) (83,638) (21,605) 4190)  (597,008)
Net book value Ji i i (& 32,072 403,268 109,377 28221 6,734 - 579,672

(a) The Group has pledged freehold land and buildings with
total net book values of approximately HK$22,478,000
(2009: HK$18,944,000) to secure bank overdrafts granted
to the Group (Note 32).

(b) Finance leases
Certain property, plant and equipment are held under finance

leases. Details of these assets are:

(a) 7GR W OR HR E v (E G L A0 W I
22,478,0007C ( — FEF JLF + i ¥
18,944,0007% ) Z 7K A SEHE - Hb K
MEFHCH > MR B IT T AN B 4R AT
i S 2 YER (Mt 5E32)

(b) MAEME
AW WS K

SO T AR A

MERA - ZFEEZFHNT

2010 2009

—F %4 ZEFILE

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT BT

Net book value M ¥ {H 255 464
Depreciation for the year A< 4F & 4785 255 224




18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 EIEHE

Intangible assets represent technical know-how acquired by TV 2 4 A A 1 s 2 Al e ik B I
the Group and internally generated product development PR A 2 i BB AR o AR IR T
costs. Movements of the intangible assets during the year are ZEEIME
as follows:
Internally
generated
product
development
Technical costs
Know-how MEREE A Z Total
T 98G Jnk P ¥l B 6 SR AR Hast
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT

Year ended 31 December 2009
BE EZZNEL A =+—HIHEE

Opening net book amount HAH/JHE T 5 (i 7,810 - 7,810
Addition %% - 5,907 5,907
Amortisation 15 (651) - (651)
Closing net book amount 7R i i {H 7,159 5,907 13,066

At 31 December 2009 j* “EEJUFE+ - H=+—H

Cost JHiA 7,810 5,907 13,717
Accumulated amortisation 2 F1#EEH (651) - (651)
Net book amount 8 i (& 7,159 5,907 13,066

Year ended 31 December 2010
e R ER SN

Opening net book amount 34 % i V5 (i 7,159 5,907 13,066
Addition %3 & - 3,413 3,413
Amortisation ## (1,116) - (1,116)
Closing net book amount }A =l T {5 {H 6,043 9,320 15,363

At 31 December 2010

e < AR

Cost B4 7,810 9,320 17,130
Accumulated amortisation 2 F1#EEH (1,767) - (1,767)

Net book amount H [ 1 {6 6,043 9,320 15,363

Amortisation of HK$1,116,000 (2009: HK$651,000) is included W5 11,116,00000 ( — F F JLAF ¢ i W
in “Depreciation and amortisation” in the consolidated income 651,00070 ) 2 #5155 AE & BE R % 2
statement. [ 478 S S A -
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

19 —MBEATZHE

2010 2009

TR R TERIAF

HK$’000 HK$’000

L aTH T

Share of net asset of an unlisted associate

JEEAL — [ 9F b e A w2 B s i 3,942 2,849

Amount due from an associate MEUT— [ 45 2\ 7] 200E 7 -
Amount due to an associate JEAT— [ 23 7 3 HE - 2

3,949 2,847

Movements of share of net asset attributable to the Group for the

year are as follows:

AN AL B 2 AL R HEE BT

2010 2009

SRR i

HK$°000 HK$°000

E¥T T T

Carrying value as at 1 January 72— H — H Z lRFEI{H 2,849 3,628
Exchange translation differences M 5,75 %8 370 88
Share of profit/(loss) MM i 1/ (f515) 723 (867)
3,942 2,849

The amounts due from/(to) an associate are unsecured, interest
free and are not repayable within one year. The fair values of
the Group’s amounts due from/(to) an associate approximate to
their carrying amounts of the receivable/payable as at the end of

reporting period.

FEWL,” (REAT) — [ B8k 7 2 W) 3R ) S
i B R — N o A
MEW,” (REAT) — 18 2~ W R 2 A F
L BB Wi JRE AT S SRV S B B R 2 MR T

{EAHA -
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2010, the Group had interest in the

following associate:

19 —MBEAFZ RS ()
MoEFEF A= AEE
WA DL N A W 2 AR

Place of
incorporation/
Form of registration/
business operation Class of
Name of associate structure Ak share held Effective interest Principal activity
ey NTEA REEWER il /RENE  BERGER B £ FEEH
BRI A R A Incorporated Taiwan Ordinary 23.6% Manufacturing of machineries
FEM il Ll S

The Group’s share of the results of its associate and its aggregated

7 TR A FCIBA 7 O ) 2 SEARR DL LA

assets and liabilities, are as follows: HE KA
2010 2009
F R e
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
Total assets & & AE{H 14,057 13,009
Total liabilities 1 f& 42 %H (2,794) (4,866)
Net asset & & FHH 11,263 8,143
Group’s share of net asset of an associate
AR B A — [T 8 P 3,942 2,849
Revenue I %5 15,904 2,881
Profit/(loss) for the year 4<4F- i i Fl/ (F548) 2,066 (2,552)
Group’s share of results of an associate for the year
2 AR A — g A )4 P 3 A 723 (867)
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INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 20 [a] 45 E S B AR
2010 2009
i “EFIUE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Share of net assets of unlisted jointly controlled entities
JREAG I i ] 5 ) S - -
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities
JRE AT ] 42 o) BT 4 0 2,640 2,640
Less: Impairment loss on amount due from a jointly controlled entity
B+ MBS ) 42 ) R Bl s 1R (1,943) (1,652)
697 988

Movements of share of net assets attributable to the Group for the

year are as follows:

ENA G 2 RSB E T EEB T

2010 2009
—eow EFNE
HK$°000 HK$’000
i T30 T

Carrying value as at 1 January /A—H —H Z iR HI{H
Addition 7 &

Share of losses M i i 15

Disposal

Carrying value as at 31 December JA 1= H = +— H Z BRI {H

The amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured,
interest free and are not repayable within one year. The
fair value of the Group’s amounts due from jointly controlled
entities approximate to their carrying amounts as at the end of

reporting period.

JRE Wi 3 (] 422 ) BT RS S A - S B
Lo IR — A AR o AR 4R [ B Qi 3L (]
2 ] B A K O T B R T SRR R
W IR Z BRI (AR A -
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INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 20

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had interests in the following

jointly controlled entities:

[l 2 ) BT 98 2 M 4% ()

BREF—FFET A=+ —H > AEH

BEAT DU [ £ B b AR

Place of
incorporation/ Proportion of
registration/ nominal value of
operation issued capital
Form of il A Class of held by the Group
Name of entity business structure Fid v share held AL E P T Principal activities
AT RREHER RENLH FiA IR R B A T b R
Wesi Technology Ltd  Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 50% Semi conductor
AL A s gl equipment distribution
ISR
WM B 5 AR Wholly-owned foreign ~ Taiwan Contributed Capital 50% Semi conductor equipment
enterprises faE i<y distribution
EEIMERE VEGRECE i
WM B 5 AR Wholly-owned foreign ~ PRC Contributed Capital 50% Semi conductor equipment
enterprises Gilo iy distribution
EEIERE VEGRECE i
The Group’s share of the results of its jointly controlled entities 7% 2 1 JRE A1k 3 [ 2 o B 2 SE AT A I
and its aggregated assets and liabilities, are as follows: HAgE RAammT :
2010 2009
R R “EFNF
HK$°000 HK$°000
W T BT T
Total assets & = 48 (H 2,180 2,559
Total liabilities £ A #H (6,066) (5.863)
Net liabilities £ fif#HH (3,886) (3,304)
Group’s share of net assets of jointly controlled entities
A 1 R A ) 2 ) B - -
Revenue for the year 4 [N I{ £ 5,945 5,185
Loss for the year 4 [NJE515 (383) (1,556)

Group’s share of results of jointly controlled entities for the year

A P A L) o B A A A
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE
TO SUBSIDIARIES

21

il I 2 ) B B B M Ak Bt R 2 )k I

2010 2009
i EEE
HK$°000 HKS$’000
L3 TH kil
Unlisted shares, at cost Ff_ET A » 4% A 171,266 171,266
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U [ & 2 7 208 236,198 223,336
407,464 394,602
Amounts due to subsidiaries A B} & 2 7] A (3,424) (14,083)

Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2010 are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2010, the amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and the balances are considered as part

of the Company’s investment in subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2010, the amounts due to subsidiaries are

unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

AREBR - E—BE T A=A
I 24 ) L S e
40 °

e =V EC Ny {73
WG 24 7 2 ORI L G0 B T 6
AL A2 T W 24 7 2 — B
Ay e

- B R 1T
i/ ) 2 KR A B B
Rt -

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN INVESTEE COMPANY 22 W RIZRE A E 2 K0H

2010 2009

S SEE S

HK$°000 HK$°000

W T EHT T

Amount due from an investee company MEUL— [H] 2 $ &/ 7] 2 3K IH 3,806 3,806
Less: impairment loss & : J8{E 518 (3,806) (3,8006)

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and is not repayable within R AR - e R SR — AR

one year.
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

to the same fiscal authority.

23 BEERTfB
R LR > R AT T A5 B g [R] — A
B IRF > A 4 1B A I AE BT A5 B
A BELIR SiE JUT 5 B B [ HEA T A K o

2010 2009
—F R e
HK$°000 HKS$’000
L3 8 STH ki i
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after 12 months
A V21 4% 158 [ 2 20 SiE 3 I 8,741 9,655
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after 12 months
AW 124 15 775 18 2 AR AR TE AR 12) (1)
Deferred tax assets — net %€ 2Efd JE & & — VR (H 8,729 9,654

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

N AE R R R B R — B A R
B2 &5eR 2 UL T - BB E E A

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: EZ BT
Accelerated
tax Estimated
depreciation tax losses Provisions Total
IEBEYTE AR BUE R B At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2009 JA ZEFEL4FE—H—H (1,012) 146 1,662 796
(Charged)/credited to consolidated
income statement
iSERHRINEEIENT PN 804 8,605 (551) 8,858
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010
WERZNFETA=+—H
M ZF—FIE—H—H (208) 8,751 1,111 9,654
Credited/(charged) to consolidated
income statement
WA PERREERREA (k) 117 (2,463) 1,421 (925)
At 31 December 2010
REF—FFEFA=1+—H 1) 6,288 2,532 8,729
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2010, the Group has unused tax losses, for
which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the balance sheet,
of approximately HK$160,940,000 (2009: HK$169,651,000)
available for offset against future profits. Included in unused
tax losses are losses of approximately HK$56,182,000 (2009:
HK$78,060,000) that will be expired in 1 year to 9 years. Other

tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

23 IEIERTISBL ()

ACE-FREFT A=+ —H > AEE
oK By 1B T i 18 49 #5719 160,940,000 70
(ZFZILF ¥ ¥169,651,00000) 7]
TG B 2R 2l 36k ) - b oI 40 AR 5% 55 s 4E
WEEAMETAMRIELCBEEE - K
By Bl TE s 48 P AL A R — & LR 3
W2 1R A 15 56,182,00000 ( W EE L
A {5 %578,060,00000) o Hoth B E 5 1R

BURI RN L

24 ATfH B il A

2010 2009
g BB
HK$°000 HK$’000
b3 2 TH BT

Unlisted investments, at cost: £ F TR E » A ¢
— equity securities (Note (a), (b)) B4 725 (K5E(a) ~ (b)) 29,459 29,459
— overseas investment funds (Note (b)) HEZMEEHE 4 (KtEE(b)) - 3,888
29,459 33,347
Less: impairment loss & : J8{EE1H (129) (129)
29,330 33,218

Notes:

(a)  The unlisted equity securities represented investments in private
entities incorporated in Taiwan, the British Virgin Islands and Hong

Kong.

(b)  As the available-for-sale financial assets do not have quoted
market prices and their fair values cannot be reasonably assessed,
the available-for-sale financial assets are stated at cost less

impairment.

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the following

i

(a) R LB SRR G - o M
FRER RE BRI L 2 A A Z

‘g =gl

(b)  Hy A T B Al NI T 05
8> B S BLAT Al > doT it
B Y A 1R (5

HE -

(c) AT R G Ty DL WS

currencies:
2010 2009
—F Ry “EEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) #5## 23,113 23,113
Taiwan dollar (“NTD”) #7 & 6,217 10,105
29,330 33,218
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INVENTORIES 25 8
2010 2009
R R ZEREIFE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T BT
Raw materials and consumables J& A B} 5 JH FE i 359,741 237,506
Work in progress 7£ 5 i 87,843 59,390
Finished goods 4 8 236,129 173,865
683,713 470,761
Included in above were raw materials of approximately bl B A JURL £ 7 99,217,00000 (&
HK$9,217,000 (2009: HK$8,513,000), work in progress of F LA ¢ ¥ H8,513,0007T ) ~ £ B
approximately HK$1,950,000 (2009: HK$6,528,000) and finished #15 %1,950,00000 ( —F T LA« i
goods of approximately HK$54,390,000 (2009: HK$58,089,000) 6,528,00070 ) K i it 45 454,390,000
which are carried at net realisable value. JC( ZEEILF ¢ i 158,089,0000T) >
YDA AT s B A SR -
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26 © 5 K H i JE WO K
2010 2009
R R ZETIUE
HKS$°000 HK$°000
BT BT
Trade receivables & 5 MEW IR 3K 1,148,971 866,508
Less: provision for impairment of receivables ¥ : JE U R 3 Jok (B 38 445 (34,017) (31,450)
1,114,954 835,058
Other receivables F At fE L IR 11,538 10,374

Total trade and other receivables B 5 N HoAth il 2k A48

1,126,492 845,432
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 26
The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 180 days
to its trade customers. In addition, for certain customers with long-

established relationship, a longer credit period is granted.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables net of provision for

impairment at the end of reporting period is as follows:

B 5 B U Al JRE WO K (4)
KEMGTHESEF N TF30KE180K
ZAEEH o WA s BE B RMBER
HTRPME > AEEETH TRERFE
/ﬂ;ﬁ o

VAN 7 B2 b E WSO K (2 41 B 3 (EL B 45
TR SR 2 i 73 A

2010 2009

TR R TEERIAF

HK$’°000 HK$°000

b3 W T T

0 to 30 days 030K 469,083 330,346
31 to 60 days 31 260K 286,278 240,535
61 to 90 days 61 90K 181,167 126,468
Over 90 days 90K DA | 178,426 137,709
1,114,954 835,058

Trade receivables of HK$917,139,000 (2009: HK$613,342,000) are
neither past due nor impaired. Of the remaining HK$231,832,000
(2009: HK$253,166,000), trade receivables of HK$197,815,000
(2009: HK$221,716,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no
recent history of default. Provision for impairment of receivable
has been provided for the remaining balance of HK$34,017,000
(2009: HK$31,450,000). The ageing analysis of past due but not

impaired trade receivables is as follows:

2 G ME M s 15917,139,00000 ( &
T ILAE i 1613,342,00000 ) BE A 7 1)
IR R IAE o i 3K ¥231,832,00000 ( —
T EJLE s 253,166,0000C) H - &
5 JE WS BR i 15197,815,0000T ( & &
JU4E + #E15221,716,0000C ) %6 1 {H ok
WM > 5% % 5K TH B B4 0 1A A 4 K
ARG BYEF AR - C R
e 134,017,00000 ( — F F JLLE - B
31,450,0007C ) w1 $& M U MR I (EL 7 4 o
78 E o Bl (8 2 5 ) IR MSUIR sk R B
Branp :

2010 2009
R R ZEEIAE
HK$°000 HK$°000
i BT

Overdue by: ZI[}f :
0 to 30 days 030K 98,649 124,475
31 to 60 days 31 260K 52,290 63,188
61 to 90 days 61 290K 21,196 12,848
Over 90 days 90K DA | 25,680 21,205

197,815 221,716
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 26 B 5 K WK (4)
The movements on the provision for impairment of trade B o) ORI BB 2 S E T

receivables are as follows:

2010 2009
TR R ZERRIE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T T
At 1 January JA—H—H 31,450 38,656
Provision for impairment of trade receivables & 5 MU R 2 Il (EL1%8 s 11,946 5,675
Write back of provision for impairment of trade receivables
5 5 I MR o (L 44 < 13 ] (6,389) (12,551)
Bad debt written off SEHRAHEH (2,990) (330)
At 31 December A~ H=+—H 34,017 31,450
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain B2 Sy B At A Rk v 2 LA IR B
impaired assets. FECIEEE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the AR B A 2 e A 80 JEU B B bl A
fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group JEWHR R Z A P(E o AT B IR 11
does not hold any collateral as security. AT T A 2 PSR o
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27 fiAEER TR
2010 2009
BB BT
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
i i HE Afd

HK$’000  HK$°000
wHTor W TT

HK$'000  HK$°000
W ToL W T

As at 31 December A+ H =+—H

Forward foreign exchange contracts (Note (a))

AN A (BT (a)) 2,114 (9,503)
Interest-rate swaps (Note (b)) |28 1 ([ 5(b)) - (2,062)

- (1,264)




27  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes

(a)

(b)

Forward foreign exchange contracts

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts. The notional principal amounts of
these outstanding forward exchange contracts at 31 December

2010 are as follows:

27

fir e ek TR (47)
e

(a) EIMSMNERA

e - AV ECEL R
47 6 T 2 OB ) o
FoFEF A=+ WEHK
J 17 2 B AN BB 5 40 2 4 37 e U

B
2010 2009
It S 28 CERESAE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T WIET T
Sell USD for JPY & i1 35056 H [E] 23,497 51,442
Sell HK$ for JPY 5 Hi # s 5i A 8] 4,677 -
Sell JPY for HK$ % i H [8] 5o,k ¥ 5,053 -
Sell USD for EUR # i} 3% 7t Sk ot 1,996 -
Sell JPY for USD # i} H [A] 5,350 - 4216
Sell RMB for JPY B i A R HE 58 H [H] 6,802 25,172
Sell RMB for USD & i A W 52550 502,194 -
Sell RMB for HK$ 1 Hi A R 5t s U 233,000 -

Interest rate swaps

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap

contracts at 31 December 2010 are as follows:

(b) IR

e S ey = I TP

JBAT Z PSR 3 ) 6 4) 2 44 Fe AR A

T
2010 2009
SE A CEREJUE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T
Pay interest at fixed rates and receive interest at floating rates
5180 5 R 3 SAT A B A O A S OR 700,412 -
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BANK BALANCES AND CASH

28 HUTHiR KB &

Group Company
A4 [ A H]

2010 2009 2010 2009
TR ZERNE ZFBE ZFLRNE
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
T ok o aPTH T oo
Short-term time deposits %5 1 2 A7 2K 842,818 44,551 - -
Bank balances and cash $R47 4588 M B 42 240,519 249,303 277 337
1,083,337 293,854 277 337

Asat 31 December 2010, bank balances and cash of HK$829,526,000

are denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2010, the weighted average effective interest

rate on time deposits was approximately 2.33% (2009: 1.75%)

per annum. These deposits had an average maturity period of one

year (2009: one year).

RO E—FEF T H =1 —H > AT
ik M Bl 4 ik 0829,526,0007T 5 4% A R

i -

BREEF-FET =0 EAT
AR INHE- 2 B R AR A 2 4 S5 2,338 (=
FRIVE : 1.75)8) o i%EF R0 —
ERE (R FIE  —4F) o

SHARE CAPITAL 29 A
2010 2009
"R R “EENAE
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
ety 8 H T f Bty H T
HK$°000 HK$’000
31 W T 0
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
g i T B S 150, 1070 2 3 2 i
Authorised: % /E A
At 1 January and 31 December
w—H—HMNt+_H=1+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: T 347 S 80UE A -
At 1 January JA—H—H 739,303,964 73,930 739,303,964 73,930
Exercise of share options 17 i i 216,000 22 - -
At 31 December JA T~ H=+—H 739,519,964 73,952 739,303,964 73,930
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed on 30 May 2005 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and will
be expired on 29 May 2015 (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, the
Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,

to subscribe for shares in the Company.

At 31 December 2010, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 16,744,000 shares representing 2.26% (2009:
16,960,000 shares representing 2.29%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding any independent

non-executive Director who is a Grantee).

Options may be exercised after one year of its grant date, and
options will vest (i) as to 25% (rounded down to the nearest
whole underlying share) on the first anniversary of its date of
grant, and (ii) as to the remainder on the second anniversary of
its grant date. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii)
the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal

value of the Company’s share.

30  JECHERT#)

ARNFMRPER ZFEFZRERA =T HE
W PR R RN RS > AW
Zy ) A A R B AR BEAE I 36 A%
A E-TAETH - JUH EET G
) oo WIEFTE > AAFEF GG
Ak iR B (AR 7] g A 7 2
)32 T HEIRAE > DAGRIEAR A A Ay o

WoF R A= —H s REEE
B 2452 AL 0 R AT S RO i 9 B 2
By BUH £16,744,00008 - 4k A% 2 7 b
HEBITRMG 2220% (L LA
16,960,000/ > 152.29%) o fiff & £ 4% 4
A R e e AR B AT AR 2
Wi FRE R T 0 T 2 Ry K8 > R A5 R A A
23 R AT A RE P 2 3 AT B A 2 10% © i
A EEAN F e H S HE - AT AT A A
T A — 4 B A K AT RE A 2 B
PR 2 © 84T ol T 84T I A 3K
H o RS A2 w AT o] B (1] B 8847 i
Uy 2 1% o 10 3 22 B o ol % 57 JF W4T o
P I RIS > I AR T O K 2
8 M AR T AR 22019 8518 (8 5 5
5,000,0007C LA | - RIJZE 545 08 57 3F AT
WA ORI AT ] A R % A 2 M8 5L FE AT
#HA) FEE -

W I AR ] A 4% H AR — AR AT > G
A H RS E R EAE B R E25% 2
S B HEE (S ) 22 o e T AR B R0 R )
B3 H O R 5E AW 4R B S
B 2 BERHE o AT AE G B A W
fEE o HARE DI RO =& 2 B ()
A B AR A TR 2 Wi (i) B2
R H AT TR 2 H Ry 2 ik
W8 5 (i) A A B Z 1 E



30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

30 BEMCRETHE A7)

W) A AT (8 S P M S 1 AR ) o - 3%

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: TrHfE 2 e UT
2010 2009
SR SEENE

Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average Number of
exercise share exercise share
price options price options
T4~ 35 Vi i i IHEF-34 i P
(FRidi] HH FrtifE HH

HKS$ HK$

bt i
Beginning of the year F-4/] 0.5613 16,960,000 0.5613 16,960,000
Exercised CAT# 0.5600 (216,000) - -
Lapsed &K% - - - -
End of the year 4K 0.5613 16,744,000 0.5613 16,960,000

All share options were exercisable as at 31 December 2010 and

2009.

Share options outstanding at 31 December 2010 have the following

expiry dates and exercise prices:

IR~ A R E N
FoAS b AR R -

- Ve Iy

RO HE < B30 B R AT AR

Share options

Vi e e
Date of expiry Exercise price 2010 2009
A AT Number of Number of
share share
HK$ options options
“EFH “ETNF
gy Ji B¢ e 8 H JLdigiid i¢E!
21 July 2015 —F—HAELH = +—H 0.56 16,016,000 16,232,000
25 September 2015 —F—HAFJLA T HH 0.59 728,000 728,000
16,744,000 16,960,000




30

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes-Merton
Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the model were as

follows:

30 BEMCRETHE A7)
DSVE TS B A ) e — 7 S S R A
G - A 2 AWT

Date of grant
B HY

22 July 2005 26 September 2005
“EERF “EERE
tAZ=+=H A —+/NH
Closing share price on date of grant A4 th H B 2 & filie i (8 HKS$0.56 HK$0.58
#H0.567C #10.5870
Exercise price 17 {#{& HK$0.56 HK$0.59
5 10.56 7T #10.5970
Risk free rate B F| 2 3.12%-3.22% 3.68%-3.87%
Expected volatility 76 HH I 8.36% 4.22%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous one year before

the grant date.

The risk-free interest rate equals to the 12 months fixed deposit
rates as quoted by the bank at valuation date for first 25% share
options and equals to yield of 2-Year Exchange Fund Notes at

valuation date for 75% share options.

The Group did not recognise any expense for the year ended 31
December 2010(2009: nil) in relation to share options granted by

the Company in 2005 which became vested in prior year.

TR ) LA 2 W) R Bt FO i
A 22 JRE S P o

R E 25 % I RETT & - A )EU e B S A0 S
TRERATIAAGE H W i 2 + 8 2 1
FERCR S BRT5%ME M RETT & > )8\ B
TR S8R 58 A T AT A1 e 3k 4 S 9 A 1 H
Wz lts o

A5 I AR AL AT E - F A
ToA=t - RIS EARA LN AR
TENAERE R (—FETN
A I R B AR o
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RESERVES 31 Gl
(a)  Group - Other reserves (a) AR — Hfith % 5
Capital Contributed Special Share
redemption ~ surplus reserve option
Share  reserve (Note (a)) (Note (b)) Translation  reserve
Group premium A EBES RUME  reserve JE It Total
ARAEH BvHiE  EEGGE (Wik@) (WEkp)  SMERG WG At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
WL W Tr BMTT EWTr EWTr BETr BN
Balance at 1 January 2009 i ~ZZ U~ — A 2 &k 89,546 1610 26,624 5008 (8,097) 781 115472
Currency translation differences & H1E 5 %48 - - - - 6,568 - 6,568
Balance at 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010
REFFNEA A=A BRER-FE - —-H 2% 89546 1610 26624 5008 (1529) 81 122,040
Currency translation differences EHER AR - - - - 13,277 - 13,277
Release of exchange reserve upon dissolution of a subsidiary
F T T D 2 1 - - - - (1505 - (1,509)
[ssue of shares upon exercise of share options
TrBEME T ERE BT R O 99 - - - - 9 9%
Balance at 31 December 2010
e S 2ty S L e g i 4 89,045 1,610 26,624 5,008 10,243 772 133902
(b) Company — Reserves (b) AL — fili
Capital Contributed Share
redemption surplus option
Share reserve  (Note (a)) reserve Retained
Company premium A& B JEl  earnings Total
KT Bt EEEE  (Wke) WA REEA gt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
T BT %o BMT BNt BT
Balance at | January 2009 R =% JUE—H— A 245k 89,546 1,610 77,253 781 108,258 277448
Profit for the year £ /1 i 1 - - - - 28,954 28,954
Balance at 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010
REFFNEL A=A RCF-FE—A— B 2ER 89,546 1,610 77,253 781 137212 306,402
Profit for the year 4 [ 7 - - - - 29,752 29,752
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 17 Bt HERF B4 T R 99 - - ) 9 9
2010 interim dividend — %~ iR & - - - - (7,393) (7,393)
Balance at 31 December 2010 A ~F—FF+ A =F+—H &% 89,645 1,610 77,253 772 159,578 328,358
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RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(b) Company — Reserves (Continued)
Notes:
(a)  Contributed surplus of the Company arose from a group

(b)

reorganisation on 26 June 1990. The balance represents the
difference between the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued under a scheme of arrangement (the “Scheme”)
and the consolidated shareholders’ funds of Wong’s Kong
King Holdings Limited as at 26 June 1990 acquired by the
Company under the Scheme. Under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is

available for distribution to the shareholders.

The special reserve is the amount of share premium of the

Group attributable to subsidiaries.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS

31 Rl )
(b) AL — Gl (A7)
B3k -

(a) M—IUNEFESRAZH/NHER
EEEA AN B - 2%
HEORTE A A AR SRR B2 BE (T 3%
FHE 1) 2 COEEAT 0 T (E B A
AR RZ R B — JULE AR H
AN O R A A PR
NE ARG G 2R o AR
WEREE LN —FEAF (K
ERT) > B SR AR v A R T R
ﬁ °

(b) R il s i O 2 ) B AV A 4 T
e 3 15 2 KO

32 BATHERER

2010 2009
R R TEERIA

HK$’000 HK$°000

T L T

Bank overdraft 1735 3 11,951 3,553
Trust receipts loans 15 FEYCE AKX 72,722 219,398
Other bank borrowings, unsecured HAbMEHEFERT T £ 1,214,535 182,689
1,299,208 405,640

The bank borrowings and overdrafts are repayable within one

year.
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BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS (CONTINUED)
The effective interest rates per annum of the bank borrowings and

overdrafts are as follows:

32

SRAT AR B RS (1)
AT AL ROB S 2 TR R E

2010 2009

E R SRR

Bank overdraft #2177 3¢ 6.75% 6.75%
Trust receipts loan and other bank borrowings

& RE SR Bk S L b SR AT £ 1.13% 1.55%

Bank overdrafts are secured by freehold land and buildings with
the total net book values of approximately HK$22,478,000 (2009:
HK$18,944,000) (Note 17).

Trust receipt loans are secured by inventory of HK$72,722,000
(2009: HK$219,398,000).

At 31 December 2010, the Company continued to provide corporate
guarantees on the banking facilities granted to the Group’s
subsidiaries. The amount of facilities utilised by the subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2010 amounted to HK$1,348,440,000 (2009:
HK$450,250,000).

SR 47 % S DLHR TR (E AR B A R
22,478,0000C( — F F Ju F W W
18,944,0007% ) 2 7k A SEHE -+ b J 4 A
HEH (BEEEL7)

15 FEWCHE Bk LA HE 15 72,722,00000 (=%
FIUAE © #15219,398,00000) Z 77 £ 1F
HEAH

REF-FETF A= 0 AR
B ST A AR 1 Y s W B 2 R AT
HRMEAFRWER - R _F—FHE+ A

=+ —H - WEBAFC 8 AT R
HE#51,348,440,0000C ( —FEFEILAE - i
450,250,0007%) ©

The Group’s bank borrowings and overdrafts are denominated in AR B RAT B JOE T3 LT B
the following currencies (amounts in original currency): B (¥ i%

2010 2009

TR R “ETNF

’000 ’000

T Tt

HKD #:#§ 276,417 47,118

RMB AR 51,000 35,000

JPY HIE 726,700 172,349

USD %7t 113,361 38,715

SGD i i 1,967 642




33  OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

33 FEhEME RS

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
AR 5 Ak I AR 5 A sk BE
2010 2009 2010 2009
“EFFE CFTNE ZFFH FTNE
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
wWT  EWTT  WWTR  BWT
Amounts payable under finance leases
il A B IE T B A RROH
Within one year —4F A 182 168 171 153
Between one to two years —4F & i 4F- 182 330 178 318
364 498 349 471
Less: Future finance charges 8, : H % il & 2% /i 15) 27) - -
Present value of lease obligations fH B 7K ~ Hl(H 349 471 349 471
Less: Amount due for settlement within
one year shown under current liabilities
B BT BRI — AR N E A 2 OR (171) (153)
Amount due for settlement after one year
R EN IR 2 3R 178 318

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the

lessor’s charge over the leased assets (Note 17).

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its property, plant and
equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is 2 years.
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the average effective
borrowing rate was 3.93% per annum (2009: 3.93% per annum).
Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for

contingent rental payments.

A 2l R B R TG LA A iR
AR A 2 B AR AR (B REL7) -

A 46 ) 2 BOR ¥ Rl AR B A T
W~ BE Bkl o ST B A A W
o lE_E-FFET+_A=Z+—HI
HERE S 7B R B AE BOR % 5 4 3,93
(B FB3.930H) - FIRBE
) B IRTSE o Fr A R T 8 4 [ 7 2R
e AT > AR A [ SN0 40 kSR 4 A KRT
SEATAT P o
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OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group’s finance lease obligations were denominated in the

33 AR )
A% 42 [ 2 T T RS TR DL R B et

following currencies: {H :
2010 2009
G- Sppe 248 ZEEIAF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T oo
SGD #i g 349 469
THB %k - 2
349 471
RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 34 BIRmAIRSE
2010 2009
- e 240 ZEEIAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T oo
Retirement benefits obligations 2 /A4E | K&
— Pension plans (Note (a)) #BAEFE (F3E@) 330 344
— Defined benefits plans (Note (b)) & REREZARFIFTH (i 5E(b)) 714 449
1,044 793

Notes

(a)

(b)

Balance represented pension provision in relation to employees in

Taiwan and Japan.

The Group operates defined benefit plans for qualifying employees
of its subsidiaries in Taiwan. The schemes are administrated by
independent trustees with their assets held separately from those
of the Group. Under the plans, the employees are entitled to a lump
sum benefit equal to certain percentage of final salary on attainment
of a retirement age of 55. No other post-retirement benefits are

provided.

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31
December 2010 by a Taiwan qualified actuary. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation, the related current service cost
and past service cost were measured using the projected unit credit

method.

(i

(a)

(b)

A ERAE A AR B A B 2B
B -

AL I TE B I A F) 2 A B R
B 7 8 B A O R FE B o 5% 55 R
HI S AR RE N - HOEE B AR
ZEBENPEA o MIEZER# - R
B HE A — SO 45 7 AR IS5
BRI REFEZ T
i MR AR KRR AR A o

F W T RS LA (B B AR AL
KR AR E 2 BUE TS th 6 85 T
PR A A A =S HE
7 o A ER FURIE 2 BUE - A B
W IS PR B A A R A 3 R
fiEE R A VA S SRt A



34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Notes (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement in respect

34 BT PR )
B3E (4)

(b) (%)

o OF I 2R il R AT B R A

of these defined benefits plans are as follows: 82 &M F -

2010 2009

—g g S EBEE

HK$°000 HK$°000

W T T

Current service cost ‘& JI IR i A% 243 255

Interest cost FILE AR 388 336
Expected loss on plan assets 71 #| & 7 TH 7T 518 (209) (179)

Amortisation of net transitional obligations AR R I AR 15 15

Amortisation of gain on defined benefits plans TE RRAE A AT S 55 2 153 115

Amortisation of past service cost DUE AR5 1A 2 i 162 153

752 695

The charge for the year has been included in employee benefit

expense.

The actual loss on plan assets was approximately HK$81,000
(2009: HK$104,000).

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial

valuations were as follows:

AAETEA BB T O Rt AR B AR A BESA -

R R 2 E R TR AT B H681,0000T (L F
FIUEE - #104,00000) o

WHEAERT RN 2 EEERNT

2010 2009

SR “EFNE

Discount rate H§Bi % 2.0% 2.5%
Expected return on plan assets 7| #1] & 2 2 FH 7T 7] ¥ 2.0% 2.5%
Expected rate of salary increases TE RN 1 3.5% 3.5%




34 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 34 BIRTRRI&IE (45)
Notes (Continued) oY

(b)  (Continued) by  (4)

The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet arising from 7 45 3wt H o AR OB K AR A S )

mELWCFFAGHEERMELE

the Group’s obligations in respect of its defined benefit retirement

plans is as follows: FHUF -
2010 2009
—E R “EFIE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T BT
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations
B E R AL AR AR YE 2 BL(E (20,330) (15,109)
Fair value of plan assets FHEVEE 2 A TE 9,447 7,907
Deficit JE5 18 (10,883) (7,202)
Net actuarial losses not recognised KRIERD Z NG A 18T il 7,700 4,355
Past service cost not recognised ARHERR 2 LA RS A A 2,273 2,206
Net transitional obligations not recognised AR < 1 ¥ & 15 40 196 192
Net liabilities arising from defined benefit obligation
JE R B R FRIE BT AR 2 AURRIEHE (7114) (449)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations

in the current year were as follows:

AAE B E MR AR B E 2 ZF T

2010 2009

I S 248 ZET A

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T T
Opening defined benefit obligation 4F- 4] & BB 3 4 FI) Ak 4% (15,109) (13,331)
Current service cost ‘& ] R 5 AR (243) (255)
Interest cost FE AL A (388) (336)
Actuarial losses 18 5[50 (2,890) (650)
Exchange differences on foreign plans BEAhEHE 2 AR (1,700) (537)
Closing defined benefit obligation 4FJEE & 4A {1k 3R A 7K 4% (20,330) (15,109)
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

34 BT PR )

Notes (Continued) oY
(Continued) by  (#H)
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year ARAEFHBEE N T HEZE W -
were as follows:
2010 2009
R R TEENAE
HK$°000 HK$°000
¥ T BT
Opening fair value of plan assets IR B 2 AT 7,907 6,839
Expected return on plan assets 71 #1] & 2 2 FH 7T 7] ¥ 209 179
Actuarial gains f5 H YN 45 (146) (80)
Exchange differences on foreign plans % BeAhEH B 2 E R 880 274
Contributions from the employer {i& 3 {13k 597 695
Closing fair value of plan assets FIEFTEEE 2 A THE 9,447 7,907
The history of experience adjustments is as follows: AR T
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Z2 R “TTHE —FT)NEFE _FTEFLE ZTTRE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$°000
T W TT W TT wWTT R Tx
Present value of defined benefit obligation
R AR RIS 2 B (E (20,330) (151090  (13,331)  (11,906)  (11,886)
Fair value of plan assets FHEEE 2 A TE 9,447 7,907 6,839 6,311 6,093
Deficit 518 (10,883) (7,202) (6,492) (5,595) (5,793)
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities
il B i 2 KR B A - - - - -
Experience adjustment on plan assets
w8 2 AR - - - - _
The Group expects to make a contribution of HK$614,000 (2009: 2 A [ TR AR TR — B AR Rt AR A A R

HK$495,000) to the defined benefit plans during the next financial

year.

w1 34 3 6 14,00000 ( F F JUAE ¢

495,0007C) °



TRADE, BILL AND OTHER PAYABLES 35 HE 5 EAIRZ - A S R H i E

i

Group

A5
2010 2009

Company
A
2010 2009

“E-RE CFEFAE DR RE CFEAF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
W WETC EWTu T

Trade payables & 7 JEfF HEFK 581,287 418,095 - -

Bill payables 1 545 75,155 83,211 - -

656,442 501,306 - -

Accruals and other payables FE 5127 ] b Ho A FEAH R K 260,083 185,234 1,687 628

916,525 686,540 1,687 628

The following is an aging analysis of trade and bill payables at the VLR 2 %1 ) JRE AT MR R o R AT S48 A i
end of reporting period: IR Z BRES 34T

2010 2009

“EFH “ETNF

HK$°000 HK$’000

E¥T I BT

0 to 30 days 0%30K 377,499 335,627

31 to 60 days 31 60K 158,191 107,109

61 to 90 days 61 % 90K 88,409 32,570

Over 90 days 90K DA | 32,343 26,000

656,442 501,306




36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOF CASH 36 &fiBl4&mE R

FLOWS
(a)  Cash (used in)/generated from operations: (a) HEEEHITH) iS4
2010 2009
TR R ZERRIE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T T
Profit/(loss) before income tax [ fif 5B i 4 1, (5 18) 193,478 (24,377)
Adjustments for: &% T 51 £ IH :
— Finance costs il & A% 11,493 8,290
— Interest income FLE A (7,940) (3,856)
— Dividends income from available-for-sale financial assets
T R e BRI (3,109) (2,981)
— Gain on dissolution of a subsidiary
- el o) VAP & (1,505) -
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Wik ~ s M it s 57,604 59,444
— Amortisation of land use rights = M {5 FI #E#EE 361 361
— Amortisation of intangible asset EFE ¥ /2 fif & 1,116 651
— (Write-back)/provision for allowance for inventories
Tt (D) B (1,350) 1,961
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
WY - S KB R 510 569
— Share of results of associates TG54 /A 7] 247 (723) 867
— (Write-back)/provision for impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment
(BRI ~ RS Bl e 1R (1,722) 1,644
— Provision for/(write-back) of impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade and other receivables
Ml (D) SRR 5 B Ab BN IR SR E R 2 (B 5,557 (6,876)
— Write-back of impairment loss on club
memberships and debentures
188 ] 8 r R 2 (R < e 1R (115) (2,300)
— Impairment loss on amount due from a jointly controlled entity
JRRE e — ] s [ 2 o) B T (B 1R 291 708
— Impairment loss on amount due from an investee company
JRE S — ] 32 B A ) R 2 I s 1R - 1,444
— Net fair value loss on financial derivatives
SRR TREEZ AT FHE 8,187 1,850
— Provision for impairment loss on available
for sales financial assets
T B I e R - 117
— Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ %5 8 7 5% 2% 2,262 3,438
Changes in working capital: 4445 & 4 551 : 264,395 40,954
— Increase in inventories 17 &34/ (211,602) (10,778)
— Increase in trade and other receivables
54 5 B FAt R IR R4 (286,617) (12,325)
— Increase in deposits and prepayments % 4z % T8 f+f 2K FEHE T (13,719) (11,812)
— Increase/(decrease) in retirement benefit obligations
IRRAEFRIER N, Gl ) 251 (1,825)
— Increase in trade, bill and other payables
B o EATRRAN ~ AT S48 R At AT B 229,985 24,674

Cash (used in)/generated from operations Z&%5 2385 (i) /PS84 17,307) 28,888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 36 & P Bl & i 8 % Wi 5k (49)
FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b)  In the consolidated statement of cash flow, proceeds from (b) MREUBeRERY > HEWE-
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: W7 T A 2 A s T AL 4
2010 2009
TR R “ERIE
HK$°000 HK$’000
E¥ T T
Net book amount HE 1A 1 {1 2,934 4,504
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
BV - R K2 R (510) (569)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
WY - RS M PR 2,424 3,935
COMMITMENTS 37 AR
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEARKRWE
Ast at 31 December 2010, the Group is committed to make W E—EFE+_H=+—H > &
capital contribution to two newly incorporated subsidiaries A K 5 ) W R A R T R AR
in the PRC amounted to HK$1,586,765. S W N ) A HE 51,586,765
JG ©
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) BWEMERE

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments

for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

TR R AR - A% 2 B A T fh A
BHEH T 2 EY 2 RACRE

operating leases in respect of the rented premises which fall FHA W EAT 2 RIE T -
due are as follows:

2010 2009
SRR —EENAEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T BT
Within one year —4F A 17,716 13,484
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5 5 L4 (G5 H B MW4E) 23,783 29,192

41,499 42,676
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DISSOLUTION OF A SUBSIDIARY

In October 2010, the Group dissolved its entire interest in a
subsidiary, Technology Kong King Electronic Company Limited.
Details of the net assets of the subsidiary at the date of dissolution

are as follows:

38

it 18— [ R 2 )

AZEFAE A AR —
] B J 2 ) R A TR TR (i) AR A
A2 AR HESE o IRECE H O M A
A EEFHERFE IR

2010
e S 22
HK$°000
BT
Net assets dissolved BB .2 & s F(E -
Release of exchange reserve upon dissolution of a subsidiary f# #i— [H]Ff 8§ 23 7 R B /1 FE £t 1,505
Gain on dissolution of a subsidiary fift #— [ fi J& /A 7 2 W i 1,505
The subsidiary dissolved during the year ended 31 December 2010 PEEZE-RE L H = — B IRE
did not contribute significantly to the revenue, operating results or B o R B 4 NI e A A 1
cash flows of the Group. It~ MEEFHNBSREFELERR
&k o
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39 BEALRS

Related parties refer to entities in which the Company has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions, or directors or officers of the Company and

its subsidiaries.

The Group is ultimately controlled by Mr. Senta Wong.

I 2o 5 AR 2 ) B L D 4 )
T3 05 BB % 53— T Z BB B RS PR
P EEY B HM > SIEAR R K
HItE Az EERFEHRAR -

AR i DR S A B A o



39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 39 BEANLRS (FE)

(a)  During the year, the Group has entered into the following (a) JAAAERE » A AR G B BN
transactions with its related parties: AT RIS S -
For the year ended Amounts due from
31 December (to) related parties
R JRE WL (JEA})
+TZA=+—HILEE PN+ Z 30
2010 2009 2010 2009

CRRE CEEIE R RE CETAR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
WTFu  BETC  EWTu BT

Trade sales (note iii and iv) & 5 8§ (B 5Eiii &iv) 61 - 13 -
Ticketing and touring income (note i and iv)
SR KRR (R T i) 244 226 28 67
Ticketing and touring income (note ii and iv)
SR KRR (T Miv) 138 117 27 37
Rental income (note iii and iv)
FHAB AR (B it Biv) 173 15 14 -
Trade purchases (note iii and iv)
B 2 W (B 5 Eiii Kiv) 2,543 50 (7 )
Rental expense (note i and iv) HH4 B 3¢ (Fff5Fi Kiv) 1,262 1,286 - -
Current account due to related parties (note i)
JREAS B2 A 2 KT (B ) - - (3,402) (3,402)
Current account due from related parties (note 1)
JRE WS B 28 N B (B i) - - 1,370 1,370
Provision for doubtful debts (note 1)
SR ERTE (3T - - (1,311) (1,311)
Notes: B &E -
(i)  Related parties are Mr. Senta Wong, his close family () BT B - HA R
members and companies of which Mr. Senta Wong or his 4= &%5/@51 R 2 A B AR
close family members are directors. RIMBA Z AT o
(i)  Related parties are Mr. John Ho or Mr. Edward Tsui and (i) B Ty & S A s E
their close family members. Ferk B 2 FIRLE -
(iii)  Related party is @ RFHEZIE A BRZH], an associate of (i) B AN L TIARLE R &8 —
the Group in Taiwan. ) = F/NEIF YN R 53 {51\75 MR
o
(iv)  The prices of the above transactions were determined with (iv) VLG 2B 2 BENZS
reference to market prices for similar transactions. T E A P i 5 o
(b)  Key management remuneration (b) FEEMAEZME
The remuneration of key management during the year was TEEMANBRENZ ST
as follows:
2010 2009
TR R ZRFIUAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
b3 TH T T
Salaries, wages, commission and allowances Frl ~ T & ~ 4 A 32,881 22,864
Post-employment benefits 2 4 ] 966 948
33,847 23,812
The remuneration of key management is determined by the T BN B B T A8 2R 31 K
Remuneration Committee having regard to the performance VESmEHmE R g e -

of individuals and market trends.
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2010 are as

40 SR 24 A
CCEFETCAS TR EEH

follows: J& A FRER IR
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
incorporation/ capital/paid up equity interest of
Class of establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company share held R/ operation CHihA/ ASEMER  Principal activities
Wil FEREN R AENE  BAEMEARS Rekls%)  LEEH
Direct subsidiary & #MB 4 7
Asean Limited Ordinary British Virgin Hong Kong UsSD1 100 Investment holding
ik Islands i 1% BigHh
ERAMRIS
Brilliant Elite Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS! 100 Investment holding
SHAGEREERRAR Hiam Fik Fi v Btk
Taiwan Kong King Co., Limited* Ordinary Taiwan Taiwan NTD362,888,940 6744 Investment holding and trading
REERRG AR HEm i fi HrH362888.94070 BEHRRE S
Wong’s Kong King Holdings Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$47,687,809 100 Investment holding
EREREMARARA B Fil Ei a7 68780970 Bt
Indirect subsidiary FIE G2 A
Dongguan Wong's Kong King Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC HK$673,600,000 100 Manufacturing and selling of
Electrnics Co. Limited" A i i 673,600,000 electrical and electronic
R T RERETARA" products
HERHERRRETEN
R R R AT Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC HKS14,820,000 100 Manufacturing of film products
TH i W 148200007 HEWRER
Dongguan Nissin Plastic Products Co., Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC HKS$34,785,009 100 Manufacturing of plastic
L * i3 il T 134,785,009 products
RERMEBRAARAT RERBER
Grace Year Enterprises Limited Ordinary Hong Kong PRC HK$2 100 Trading and distribution
e SRR AT ik i i o of plastic products
R 0 A
Headway Holdings Limited* Ordinary Samoa Taiwan USD1,100,000 6744 Trading and investment holding
ERERARAR HEm .4 fi# 1100.000 72 B RAvEHER
Hiking International Company Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$7.800,000 5463 Investment holding and
BERBRGERAT iyl ik ik 157,800,007 provisionfor installation
services
BgHR iR £ R
Hiking Technology (Suzhou) Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC USD1,000,000 5463 Design, producing and
Company Limited"* i Gl i 1,000,000 testing of electronic
BERE (M) ARAFH componens

it » LB MRl
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40

R 2 vl A

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
incorporation/ capital/paid up equity interest of
Class of establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company share held FERE/ operation CH#ifA/ ASEHBEN  Principal activities
Wil Bl R A HAEMEAT Rekls%) — TEEH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued) F#ATE 47 ()
Hong Kong Taiwan Kong King Limited ~ Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$26,210,000 6744 Trading and distribution of
FEARERARAT ik i i 526,210,000 industrial products
B R T e
Nissin Co., Limited Ordinary British Virgin PRC USD4,500,001 100 Investment holding and trading
Tk Islands Gl 4,500,001 T and distribution of plastic
REHRRRS products
gk BRERES
R
Speady Snatch Company Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS2 100 Tnvestment holding
EfARAA il it Hik o ik
WKK America (Holdings) Inc.* Ordinary United State of United State of USD45,000 100 Marketing
Tk America America 450008 ikl
FH #H
WKK Asia Pacific Limited Ordinary British Virgin Hong Kong USD1 100 Investment holding
FREEATHEARAR ik Islands ik B Rk
ERATARR
WKK China Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$500,000 100 Trading, distribution and
TREETRARAT iyl ik ik 00,0007 installation of tumkey
production facilities
Rh - BRRERRER
AR
WKK Distribution Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
FRERIRAR LA Haf Fil Fi 41,000,000 Bk
WKK Electronic Equipment Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 100 Trading and distribution
FREEETRIARAA Eak Fil B i B A
WKK Engineering Service Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS$2,000 100 Provision of engineering
IREERBEBIEAR AR el i Bl 59 0007C Services
RUTREBRE
WKK Japan Limited* Ordinary Japan Japan JPY50,000,000 100 Marketing
HEl S i3 S0.000.000 it
Wong's Kong King (Singapore) Pte. Ordinary Sinagpore Singapore SGD1,000,000 100 Trading and distribution in
Limited* Tk i g H%1,000,0007C electronics components and

printed circuit boards and

other related products
PR REDRIER B

A hERE RS R
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

40 FEMEARIFER 4

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
incorporation/ capital/paid up equity interest of
Class of establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company share held FEMAE/ operation LA/ ASEEIEN  Principal activities
Wil B remaveEn R AENE  RAGEMEARE Rekls%)  TEEH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued) FIZ & A7l (%)
WKK PCB Trading Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 100 Trading and distribution
IRERERRAAARAT Eiafk Fik Fi o R R
WKK Technology Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$500,000 100 Manufacturing and selling of
IRBERHARAA ik ik ik 150000070 electrical and electronic
products
ERHERRRETEN
WKK (Thailand) Limited* Ordinary Thailand Thailand Common shares 100 Trading and distribution of
eyl R R THB2.450,000 industrial products
Bk BARAHTERR
~%H2.450,000
Preference shares
THB2.550,000
Bt
— 792,550,000
WKK Travel Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4,600,000 100 Travel ticketing
TRERREARAA Haf il Fi 1H4.600,0007C el
Won King Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS! 100 Investment holding
REHRE AR o] Tk it Fik o Bk
SRR AR A Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC US56,000,000 100 Investment holding
i3 | iR G 6,000,003 & BRHR
3 Kings Holding Limited Ordinary Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$25,575,000 8504 Manufacturing, general trading
ZERMARAA ik i ik 151525 575.0007C and hospital management
Rt —BERRRRER
BEHERDERA Ordinary Taiwan Taiwan NTD62,370,000 5732 Manufacturing of industrial
bt A B HA62.370,0007 products
B TEER
TREERA (B FRA: Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC HK$6,000,000 100 Trading and distribution in
3 i Gl 876,000,000 printed circuit boards and
semi-conductors equipment
EE e
CULVES:
TRBERGEE(RIERAT®  Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC RMBI10,038,500 100 Trading and distribution in
i34 Gile1 i ARH10,038 50070 printed circuit boards and

semi-conductors equipment
R B R
B0 RAsh
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40

R 2 vl A

(CONTINUED)
Particular of
Place of issued share Attributable
incorporation/ capital/paid up equity interest of
Class of establishment Place of registered capital the Group (%)
Name of company share held i3 v operation Bti171 e v ASEEN  Principal activities
Wl FERGEN R BENE  RERMEAGEH RoAts(%) — EEEH
Indirect subsidiary (Continued) [/ M4\ 7l (%)
TR (BN AIRAR) Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC USD2,500,000 6744 Trading & distribution
i il Gile| 2,500,000 of industrial products
HARAHTERR
FRIERES (He) ARAR" Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC USD880,000 100 Trading and distribution in
g HE HE 880,000 ¢ printed circuit boards and
semi-conductors equipment
ENR B R R
B R
TREE (M) REBRE Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC USD310,000 100 Provision of maintenance and
AR g il Gl 310000% T after sales services
PO R &
Rt REREHARAT Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC USDT10,000 100 Manufacturing, trading &
i G Gl 71000070 distributions of industrial

law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting

Company registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises
under PRC law.

Company registered as cooperative joint venture under PRC

Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

at the end of the year or any time during the year.

products

W HHREBHTEER

AR B A R RE MR A 2 E AN E A

¥ o

R BIE MRS S EEE A
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JF R AR S RIS T A A

LN o

bR R I AR W SR A
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